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About Parity

Parity Group has two independent trading divisions:
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Parity Group i1s

Driving Change, People Led,
Technology Enabled.

Panty Group provides organisations
with the nght people, with the right
skills and the right technology through
two complementary service offerings

Parity Professionals

Providing targeted recrutment

of temporary and permanent
professionals and career development
through training and coaching services
We ensure our clients have both the
capactity and capability to transform
organisational performance in high
growth and rapidly evolving markets

Parity Consultancy Services
Providing clients with niche expertise
driven by senior industry-experienced
consultants, exploiting technology and
maximising the potential of iInformation
to provide competitive advantage.




Headlines

Parity Group plc (*Parity” or the “Group”), the UK IT and Consultancy
Services Company, announces its audited preliminary results for the year
ended 31 December 2015

Headlines

I New growth strategy buitding on:
¢ the core service offerings of iT Resources and Talent Management under the Parity

Professionals division, and

o the Parity Solutions offering now under a new Parity Consultancy Services division

I Marked increase in adjusted EBITDA" to £1.20m in H2 2015 from £0.38m in H1 2015 and a
resilient performance overall

1 Strong improvement in new client activity for Parity Professionals with 128 new clients in the
financial period (95 in 2014)

B The first major win for Parity Consultancy Services division with Parity Solutions awarded a
significant high profile management information contract with the MoD valued at £2.20m

B Implementation of £1m annualised cost saving programme from H2 2015 following the exit from
the digital acquisition strategy

Results summary:
Revenues reduced o £84 84m (2014 £92 26m)
Adusted EBITDA! of £1 58m {2014 £1 60m)
First positive cash flow from operations in five years of £0 18m
Net cash inflow from operations £0 18m (2014 £1 87m cash outflow)
Net debt £7 38m (2014 £6 61m)
Profit before tax and before non-recumng items and impairment of £0 14m (2014 £0 41m)
Non-recurring costs of £2 06m (2014 £0 81m) and £1 99m goodwill mpairment (2014 nil) related to the
Initron service offenng
o Panty Professionals - Specialising in the sourcing, development and placing of professional staff
* Revenue £78 19m (2014 £84 47m)
* Dsional contribution? £2 28m (2014 £2 49m)
¢ Parity Consultancy Services — Niche expertise creating technology solutions
* Revenue £6 65m (2014 £7 80m)
¢ Dvisional contribution? £0 80m (2014 £0 68m)

v

' In assessing the performance of the business, the drectors use a non-GAAP measure “Adjusted EBITDA® betng the measure of EBITDA, prer to non-recumng ttems
and share based compensaticn as detaled In note 4

? Dmslonal contribution in this namatve refers to the segment contnbution belore Group costs?, tax, interest, non-recurring items and share based payment charge
3 Group costs mclude drectors’ salanes and costs relating to group activities and are not allocated to reporting segments

* This announcerment contains certan statements that are or may be forward looking with respect o the financial condition resuits or operations and business of Panty
Group plc By ther natura forward-lookang statements inveolve nsk and uncertanty because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that wall occur in the
futura There are a number of factors that could cause actual results and developments to differ matenally from those expressed or mplied by such forward-looking
statements These tactors nclude, but are not imited to ) adverse changes to the current outlook far the UK IT recruiiment and solutions market, (i) adverse changes
in tax laws and regulations, (i} the nsks associated with the introduction of new products and services {v) pnoing and product nitiatives of competitors, {v) changes in
technology or consumer demand, {w) the termination or delay of key contracts, (i) fluctuations in exchange rates and {vy) volatiity i financtal markets
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Chairman’s Statement
Lord Freeman — Non-Executive Chairman

Financials

The Group's financtal performance N 2015 was reassuringly resifient during a year of significant change as the strategy for the
business developed Whilst revenues for the Group reduced to £84 84m (2014 £92 26m), the business maintained adjusted
EBITDA in-line with last year at £1 58m (2014 £1 60m) There has been a strong imprevement in revenues and profit in H2
compared to H1 and the business has now completed a £1m cost reduction programme which will generate a full year benefit in
2016 and beyond

2018 2014

H1 H2 YEAR YEAR

Reverue 41,175 43,667 84,842 92,264
Divistonal contnbution 1,205 1,872 3,077 3,174
Group costs (821) (676) {1,497) (1,570)
Adjusted EBITDA 384 1,196 1,680 1,604

Panty Professionals has shown encouraging growth through the year and became the hub for the majonty of Group actvities We
ceased our digital business acquisition strategy and the SuperCommunications division was renamed Panty Consultancy Services
to aign with the new technology consulting strategy After a carefully managed transition, there 1s a refreshing enthusiasm and
confidence in the new structure and the opportunities it provides for the Group and our clients

Party Professionals revenues recovered through the year from a lower comparable start point and ended on £78 19m (2014
£84 47m) with a resuttant Divisional Contribution of £2 28m (2014 £2 49m) Encouragingly, the trend of ncreasing revenues,
profitability and margins from H1 into H2 has been mantained into the first two months of 2016

Parity Consultancy Services revenues have reduced (2015 £6 65m, 2014 £7 80m), though the rationalisation of the business and
the growth through the year in Pamty Solutions has helped the business to achieve a growth in Divisional Contnbution to £0 80m
(2014 £0 68m) with margins improving strongly Inifion remains as a standalone technology node within this division

Non-recumng costs and imparment increased as a result of exiting the digital acquisition strategy and the subsequent restructure

Cash and Dividend

Cash has been impacted by the exit from the digital acquisition strategy, due to the non-recumng costs involved in the prevtously
announced closure of Golden Square and rationalising the management structure As a result, cash and cash equivalents at year
end were £2 65m (2014 £2 97m) with net debt being £7 38m (2014 £6 61m)

PNC have provided our banking arrangements since 2010 Having reviewed our current facility and reviewed financial forecasts and
projections, with reasonable sensitivities appled, the Board Is satisfied the funding arrangements are sufficient to meet the Group's
needs for the foreseeable future

No dwvdend is payable for this year, but the Board intends to keep this policy under review

Board Changes

There have been a number of changes to the Board in the year, pnmarily dnven by the exit from the digital business acquisition
strategy The Board was realigned to focus on the core business offenngs of recruitment, talent management and consultancy
senvices with an exciting new growlth strategy

Andy Law, former Chairman of the SuperCommunications dision, teft the Board on the 13 August 2015 Dawd Courtley also
stepped down as Non-Executwe Director on 13 August 2015

Alan Rommel was appointed to the Board on 13 August and promoted to Group CEQ on 4th November 2015 to lead the new
growth strategy Alan has been with Panty for over 20 years and has a strong background in the recruitment and talent management
Industry

Alastar Woolley retired as Group Finance Director on 27 May 2015 and Mike Aspinall was appointed as Group Finance Director on
14 September 2015

On the 4 November 2015 both Phiip Swinstead OBE, the former Group Executive Chairman, and Paul Davies, Chairman of the
Panty Protessionals division, retired frem the Board, and | took over as Group Non-Executive Chairman Both Philip and Paul were
founders of Panty The Board and the Group are indebted to them both for therr tireless work over the years They lsft the Group ina
stable position with a clear vision and strong, energetic leadership
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Chairman’s Statement continued

Current Trading and Future Prospects

The core bustnesses of Panty Professionals and Panty Consultancy Services are following an exciting growth path under the
teadership of Alan Rommel, the newly appainted Group CEQO It 1s very pleasing to see the early signs of success in building the
enlarged client base and leveraging existing relahonships with new chent sensces across the businesses The core London
businesses are relocating to a single office which will faciitate improved communication and collaboration amongst the teams at no
additional cost 2016 has started with the strong momentum carned forward from the second half of 2015 and the executive
management team, and all of the Panty staff, are focused on bullding profitability, ensuring the core business remains cash-
generative and value enhancing for shareholders The Board thanks all of the staff for therr commitment in the year

The Beard i1s dedicated to dnving profitability, cash fiow and shareholder value and looks forward to 2016 with confidence

MW

Lord Freeman,
Non-Executive Chairman
16 March 2016
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Strategy

Alan Rommel — Chief Executive Officer

Overview

After the carefully managed restructuring in 2015, Panty 1s now
focused on its established and proven business model
providing chents with both the people and the technology to
drive change through twe strongly defined and complementary
business units

¢ Panty Professionals specialising in the sourcing,
development and placing of professional staff through the 1T
Resources and Talent Management offenngs

* Panty Consultancy Services niche expertise creating
technology solutions through the Party Solutions and Inition
offerings

Panty 1s Driving Change, Pecple-Led, Technology-Enabled

This new and exciting strategic ambition supports our clients as
they adapt to the rapidly changing IT market

We have a clear 3-year plan bullt around growth, market
leadership and future investment This will be achieved through
organic expansion of our established and trusted offenngs, and
through strategic investment in the higher margin consultancy
proposition

Within the Consultancy Services division, we will continue to
bulld upon the existing expertise of Panty Solutions which
already provides a solid base of technical knowledge for
conhsultancy, systems integration and bespoke development
projects This consulting expertise can be rapidly scaled with
contractor and associate support from the Professionals
division, whilst maintairing the controls, processes and
assurance of a consultancy model, thus adding value through
the management of client projects

Additionally, we plan to expand our range of technology
consulting services by developing practices led by senior
business and technical experts where the Group already has
significant agency business, providing a true teadership edge

We have restructured and reduced central costs to support the
new focus on the profitable core As a result, Panty has
become a more efficient and simpler business with proven
strengths in human capital and technelogy-enabled change
management This stable platform for growth provides

* Client flexibility, combining niche services into an integrated
solution

*  Multi-channe! sales
* Opportunity to leverage cross-sales

s Consulting model with rapidly scalable staffing model with
access to niche contract and associate expertise through
Panty Professionals, with a resulting low bench cost

The strategy 1s based on three main pillars

Growth

With the focus on a future opportunity that builds on the stable
core business and the skills of the dedicated, experienced and
enthusiastic management team, the Group plans to grow
organically by leveraging its scale, targeting growing markets
which are undergoing change and where there is resultant tugh
demand for people and technology to support change

We have already established a programme of collaboration
which has resulted in the dentification and development of a
number of opportunities and 1s gaining further momentum after
a successiul cross-business launch in January 2016

We are now committed to setf-fund growth, however 1t should
be expected that there will be a lead tme to build some of the
niche market consultancy practices There 1s great strength in
our core offenng, and people who provide a dedicated and
excellent seriice to clients It 1s these strengths that will underlie
the growth for the business

Market Leadership

Each business unit will maintain its own direct sales approach
but the Group 1s building an overarching capability n Change
Management and moving the proposition up the value chamn
Whilst having a range of ndwdual ‘product’ offenngs, the
businesses will support each other and the client will be able to
combme the modular services Into a more integrated solution
Through a broad range of individual specialisms, Panty ams to
provide market ieading Change Management services —
People-led, Technology-enabled

Future Investment

Parity will build upon the established and profitable foundations
with a clear and unified client propositton — maximising the
effectiveness of pecple, processes and systems within our
clients’ organisations

Panty Professionals will self-fund internal investment to support
organic growth within the core services, and by adding capacity
in new high growth and high demand markets

Panty Consultancy Services will bulld upon the Business
Inteligence consultancy service through Parity Solutions, and
create additional specific niche practices led by senior
professionals where the Group already has existing cpportunity
to leverage additional services Thus approach is already being
successfully deployed in the MoD where the wider support of
the group s proving extremely effective, allowing the service to
scale quickly without the associated bench costs In addition to
the enhanced sales and marketing capability, this 15 evidence of
the great opportunity to leverage our existing chent base to
provide additional, higher value sernvices

Summary

With the increased clanty of a more aligned and targeted
business strategy through these three pillars, we are confident
that we can builld on the underlying strengths in the business
and provide further growth opportunity This confidence 1s
further enhanced by the momentum carned forward from H2
trading into earty 2016

Panty 1s well placed to caprtalise on the opportunities in the
market, leveraging the strength of the resources business
combined with bullding the consultancy proposition, to improve
marging, and support the Board’s commitment to drnving
profitability, positive cash flows and shareholder value




Operating Review

QOverview

The re-organisation has provided a clear focus on our
estabhshed and profitable services, maxmising the
effectiveness of people, processes and systems within our
clients’ organisations The Group as a whole has been bulding
momentum through 2015, improving the sales pipeline and
growing profitability This has been achieved through self-
funded mnvestment, increasing the capacity and the focus of the
sales teams, mproved marketing, and by continuing to iImprove
operational efficiency to capitalise on the opportunities in a
resiient UK economy

We are an agile business, bulding margins across the different
service ines, and winrung larger scale programmes with a
rapidly scalable and cost-effective delivery model

Through the year, Panty Professionals has significantly
increased contractor volumes and permanent fees, whilst
Increasing average margins As a profitable part of the
business, Panty Solutions was to be integrated within Panty
Professionals but we have decided to take a different approach
as the Solutions team demonstrated a capabillity to win and
delver larger scale programmes with the support of the wider
business We will now build upon the core offering of Panty
Solutions having created a new consultancy business - Panty
Consultancy Services The Group has bullt a stronger pipeline
across every service line which gives increasing confidence in
the outlook into 2016 and beyond

Qur chents need for change 1s dnven by both advances in
technology, and by the demands of increasingly technology
‘savvy’ users — be they employees within the crganisation
driving the requirements, or their own customers demanding
more Panty, as both a people and technology provider, 1s
ideally placed to service our clients’ needs, enabling the
changes which will drive therr growth

Panty 1s,
Driving Change, People-Led, Technology-Enabled

PARITY PROFESSIONALS

Overview

Panty Professionals has a clear ‘people’ focus — bulding
capacity and capabilty for our clients to transform
organisational performance This has elevated the proposition
for the recruitment and placement services and increased
breadth of services to include talent development which
differentiates the busmess from its peers

We have invested in bulding the brand and the extended
service offenngs which has enabled a further shift from arms-
length transactional delivery towards a more consultative, value-
adding and higher margin service As clients demand access to
tughly productive professicnals to support their evolution, we
have created a broad range of integrated HR services — from
graduate recruitment and induction through to sentor level
recrutment and development programmes, maximising the
impact and efficiency of therr management and staff

Revenues In the year reduced by 7% to £78 19m (2014

£84 47m) with contnbution reducing by 8% to £2 28m (2014
£2 49m) on a ke for ike basis (1 e with all operating overheads
allocated to the business) The full year performance in
Professionals was adversely impacted by the previously

mentioned loss of a major contract at the end of 2014, both
revenues and contribution have demonstrated significant
improvement from H1 to H2 in the year, and H2 2015 finished
marginally up on H2 2014

The IT Resources Offerning

The recrutment business entered 2015 with a high level of
achtwvity but with contractor volumes impacted by the
cancellation of a major contract at the end of 2014 Whilst
divisional revenues for the year dropped, the team has made
significant progress through the year in terms of contractor and
permanent fee growth and improvement in contribution..,

The underlying momentum has been built by successfully
adding 104 new clients in the year (vs 79 in 2014) and
Improving average margins across our offices With an
mprovement in the volume of opportunities, conversion rates
and placements over 2014, we have achieved an increase N
Gross Profit generated on new deals wntten of 298%

Permanent fees grew by 38% n the year due to the speed in
which we responded to an increase in demand for miche skills
as we built a new permanent team dedicated to target skills
verticals Its our ntention to replicate this model of niche
specialism in growing markets for our London and Edinburgh
offices

The Talent Management Offening
The business continues to offer HR consultancy, traming and
advisory services to government and industry

Panty continued to manage the highly regarded FastStream
graduate recruitment programme on behalf of HMRC with the
contract being renewed for a further 12 months taking us into
our 12th year of successful delivery Public sector spend on
funded development and employment support in Northern
Ireland 1s being reduced and as a result our INTRO graduate
programme 1s unlikely to continue The team will build upon
their credentials by offenng graduate recruitment and
development programmes direct to end clients as weli as ther
leadership and coaching services We are adding scale to the
sales team in mainland GB where sales achieved significant
growth In 2015 with much less reliance on public sector spend

The team have won 24 new clents in the year {16 n 2014)
including some larger scale and higher margin programmes
with well-known blue-chips including adidas and Coca-Cola A
closer working relationship across Panty Professionals 1s
proving that clients see the value in an integrated solution

PARITY CONSULTANCY SERVICES

At the core of the new Panty Consultancy Services business,
the Panty Solutions offenng allows our clients to combine
expertise and technology to prowide a competitive advantage
This expertise creates an important differentator between the
people-led Panty Professionals business and the technology-
enabled Panty Consultancy Services The in-house
development team are bullding expertise in big data solutions
and the wider Business Inteligence market This expanding
market has already resulted in the award of a significant
high-profile management information contract with the MoD to
deliver the next phase of the Military Capability Output Costing
System (MCOCS) This major Business Intelligence intiative 1s

uodey oifajeng
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Operating Review contnued

worth over £2m for the first two years and has supported a
growing pipehkne in other related areas through the year

We will build the consuitancy proposition further with new
practices in markets that are undergoing significant change that
have access to funding to support the transition, such as
Health and Utiities where we already have significant market
presence and expertise across the Group As with the MoD we
will further develop this knowledge with miche technology
expertise dnven by seror industry-expenenced consultants,
underwritten with the delivery capabiiity of a trusted brand

Inilon remains In its own nght as a small but exciting
technology node specialising in Virtual and Augmented Reality
to create installation-based experiences and exciting marketing
solutions Durnng the year, Initon has increased the focus on
account management resulting In greater visibility of a growing
pipeling

Ul

Alan Rommel,
Chief Executive Officer
16 March 2016




Financial Review
Mike Aspinall — Group Finance Director

Divisional performance

Revenue Contribution

2015 2014 2015 2014
Continuing operations £'000 £'000 £'000 T 000
Panty Professionals 78,190 84,466 2,276 2,491
Panty Consultancy Services 6,652 7,798 801 683
Total dmvisional 84,842 92,264 3,077 3,174

Whilst revenue for the Group decreased by 8 0% to £84 84m (2014 £92 26m), dwsional contribution margin increased to 3 6%
(2014 3 4%) The main driver of the year on year movement was the low starting pomnt to 2015 due to a strategic decision by a
client to move a significant contract to a master vendor agreement with another supplier at the end of 2014 Momentum grew
steadily dunng the year, with H2 revenues up 6 0% and H2 contnbution up 36 2% on H1, and both above the equivalent penod in
2014, allowing the Group to finish the year strongly

Within Parnity Professionals, IT Resources revenues were down 7 5%, due to the low 2015 starting point Revenue and marging built
dunng the year, with H2 revenues of £39 4m up 7 2% and H2 contnbution up 19 3% on H1, and both marginally up on the
comparable period last year

Parity Consultancy Services benefited from Solutions winning the MCOCS Management Information programme for the MoD in H2
as well as continued work with long-standing chent BAT to offset the low starting point to 2015 Iniion revenues were up 7 3% year
on year and overall dwisional margins increased to 12 0% (2014 8 8%}, helped in part by a £0 62m reduction 1n divisional
overheads

Reconciiation of divisional contrbution to operating profit/(loss) from continuing operations

2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Divistonal contribution 3,077 3,174
Group costs {1,497} (1,570)
Depreciation and amortisation (719} (477)
Share-based payment charges (152) (242)
Operating profit/{loss) before non-recurnng items 709 885
Non-recumng items {continuing operations) (2,058} (814)
Impairment (1,994) -
Operating {loss)/profit from continuing operations (3,343} . 71

Group costs fell to £1 50m (2014 £1 57m), reflecting the share of the cost reduction program implemented following the strategy
change at the end of H1

Depreciation and amortisation has nsen in 2015 to £0 72m (2014 £0 48m) due to the full year effect of investments in 2014 n core
management information systems and in Inttion's product portfolio

Share based payment charges have fallen as there was a reduction in the number of share options issued to employees in 2015

Non-recurnng items

2015 2014
Continuing cperations £'000 £000
Imparment loss 1,994 -
Restructuring costs )
— Employee benefit costs 1,404 405
— Whte down of tangible fixed assets 31 -
— Other operating costs 126 129
Transaction costs 125 1”66
Property provisions 62 169
Gain on acquisition - (55)

4,052 814
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Financial Review continued

Impairment

At the year end, the directors considered the carrying value of
all Intangible assets, reviewing the underlying assumptions for
both cash flows projections and discount rates specific to the
cash generating unit concerned As a result of this review, the
directors considered it prudent to increase the discount rate
associated with the Inihion service offenng and an impaiment
loss of £1 98m was booked

Other nen-recurring items

Employee benefit costs relate to compensation payments
incurred in exiting the digital acquisibion strategy, the
streamiining of the Board and the closure of the Golden Square
Content service offenng The imparrment of tangible fixed
assets relates to the closure of Golden Square

The transaction costs relate to an aborted transaction in H1
Property provisions represent empty office provisions related to
the refocation of the PLC head office

Earnings per share and dividend
The basic loss per share from continuing operations was
3 85 pence {2014 0 43 pence)

The Board does not propose a dividend for 2015 (2014 nl),
but will contmue to review this policy each year

Statement of Financial Position

intangible fixed assots

Dunng 2015, the Company invested £0 28m (2014 £1 06m) In
intellectual property relating principally to further enhancements
to three successful and in-demand products in the Intion
service offering, and the development of core programmes for
the Talent Management service offenng There was a residual
amount related to the completion of certain features of the new
management information systems introduced in 2014

Carrying value of goodwill was impacted by a £1 99m
imparrment related to the Inttion service offering

Trade recesvables and accrued income

Trade and other recevables increased by £0 Tmto £15 6m
(2014 £15 5m) due to an increase in year-end activity and
bilings compared to the same pencd last year, offset by a sight
improvement in debtor days At the end of the year, calculated
on bilings on a countback basis, debtor days decreased to

31 days (2014 33 days)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables increased dunng the year to £8 6m
(2014 £8 3m) The increase 1s due to restructunng related
non-recurnng costs payable in 2018, offset by a reduction in
the brought forward payable balance following payment of the
final tranche of the Intion earn out in H1 2015

Other financial habities

Other financial labilities represent the Group's debt under the
asset-based lending facility This 1s & working capital faciity and
13 consequently linked to the same cycle as the trade
receivables The asset-based lending facility wath PNC provides
for borrowing of up to £15m depending on the availability of
approprate assets as secunty Interest on borrowings I1s
charged at 2 5% over the prevaling base rate The current
faciity 1s subject to a mimmum penod up to 31 December
2016, at which paint the facility becomes evergreen roling over
on the same terms, with six months’ notice from ether party

The bank has not drawn to the attention of the Group any
matters to suggest that this facility will not be continued

Cash flow and net debt

The Group realised positive net cash flows from operating
activities of £0 18m (2014 £1 91m cash outflow}, the first
positive operating cash flow 1n five years, helped in part by
lower payments to the retirement benefit plan With the final
Inhon earn-out payment now made, and iower non-recumng
costs and affordability inked pension contnbutions, the Group
looks forward to a perod of positive operating cash flows

Net debt mcreased to £7 38m (2014 £6 61m), due mostly to
cash non-recurnng costs in the year and the final earn out
payment for Intion

Provisions

Prowsions are all property related and have significantly
decreased dunng the year to £0 01m {2014 £0 08m) reflecting
the final unwinding of prowisions built up In previous years for
empty properties The 2015 provision I1s for leasehold
dilapidations on current properties

Pension Fund

Dunng 2015, the Group agreed a payment holiday with the
trustees of the Pension fund from January to December 2015
Payments therefore reduced in the year to £0 03m (2014

£0 89m) The pension fund realised an actuanal gain of £0 85m
dunng the year as the present value of llabilites reduced
following an upwards revision to the discount rate to 3 8%
(2014 3 5%;)

In March 2016, we reached agreement with the trustees of the
defined benefit pension scheme to reduced deficit reduction
contributions, inkung amounts payable to Group performance
and affordability on a shding scale as part of the current triennial
valuation review Reduced cash commitments over the next
three years will help the Group's interest cover ratio and cash
generating capability

Principal risks and uncertainties

Market

The Group continues to monitor its exposure to the public
sector and while the Group's exposure has reduced over recent
years, it still remains exposed to potential public sector budget
reductions and changes to recruitment

The Group trades almost exclusively in the UK, and is aware of
the changing competitive environment that faces both its
divisions As a result, there 15 a major emphasis on addressing
the lower volume but higher margin niche sectors and
opportunities in the Panty Professionals dvision and the new
growth areas for the Panty Consultancy Services diviston

People

Qur people are the most important part of our service and
having appropnately trained and motivated staff helps us
reduce the rnisk of poor service delivery Share plans are used to
incentivise and retain senior staff in the medium term HR
pelicies and procedures are reviewed regularly to ensure the
business recruits and retains appropnately trained and
expernenced staff




Financial

The Group actively monitors its iquidity position to ensure it has
sufficient avallabls funds and working capital in order to operats
and meet its planned commitments and has a credit nsk policy
that requires appropnate status checks and or references as
necessary

Technology

As an [T services provider the Group relies on its IT,
telecommunications and infrastructure systems to perform and
manage the services we provide to clients The Group reviews
its own disaster recovery systems regularly in order to minimise
the nsk of prolonged disruption to systems

Legal

The Beard recognises that non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations can result In substantial fines or penalties
Sutable controls are built into our service delivery processes to
reduce the nsk of non-compliance

A N Vs
/‘//f jm/f/‘/’ﬁ/

Mike Aspinall
Group Finance Director
16 March 2016
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Board of Directors

Lord Freeman

Non-Executive Chairman' 2 2

Roger Freeman, 73, was appointed Non-executive Charman in
November 2015 and 1s Charman of the remuneration and
nominations committees Roger joined as a Non-Executive
Director in 2007 After qualifying as a Chartered Accountant in
1969 he joined Lehman Brothers, the US Investment Bank, and
was a Partner in the London Office untl 1983 when he entered
the House of Commons He served as a Minister between 1986
and 1997 including Cabinet Minister for Public Service He
became a Life Peer in 1997 and also became a Partner with
PricewaterhouseCoopers for whom he now charrs therr UK
Adwisory Beard He 1s Charman of the Trustees of the Thales
UK Pension Fund

Neal Ransome

Non-Executive Director! 28

Neal Ransome, 55, was appointed to the Board as a
Non-Executive Director in September 2013 and is Charrman of
the audit committee Neal retired from PwC in 2013 where he
was a Corporate Finance Partner and Chief Operating Officer of
PwC's Adwisory line of service In addition to his direct
managenal expenence N a large services organisation, Neal has
over 20 years’ expenence of advising clients on their M&A
actvities Neal 1s also a Non-executive Director of Quercus
{General Partner) Limited and Trustee and Council Member of
the RSPB

' Member of the nominations committee
? Member of the remunaration committee

3 Member6f the audit committee
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Alan Rommel

Chief Executive Officer

Alan Rommel, 44, 1s the Chief Executive Officer of Panty and
was appointed to the Board in August 2015 Alan joined Panty
following completion of his degree in Economics and Business
Studies from the University of Sheffield Atan is a specialist in
the sector with over 20 years' recruitment expenence and a
sold understanding of the industry He spent 5 years as MD of
Panty Resources before promotion in 2013 to CEO of Panty
Professionals which was created by combining the recrutment
and talent management services In additon to holding a
number of senior posts within the Panty Group, Alan was
elected to the APSCo (The Association of Professional Staffing
Companies) Executive Committee for 3 terms covenng the
pencd 2010 - 2014

Mike Aspinall

Group Finance Director

Mike Aspinall, 43, 1s the Group Finance Director of Panty Group
plc and was appointed to the Board in September 2015 Prior
to jaining Panty, Mike was CFO at Picsclve International Limited
for 3 years, an Eight Roads/Fidelity private equity backed
company, and has previously worked as the finance director in
a number of venture capital and owner managed companies
Mike trained and qualified with Arthur Andersen




Directors’ Report

The Directors present ther report and the audited accounts for
the year ended 31 December 2015

Principal activities

The Group delivers a range of recruitment and business and
technology solutions to clients across the public and private
sectors During the penod under review the Group operated
through two dimsions, Panty Professionals and Panty
Consultancy Services (formerly SuperCommunications)

The principal activity of the Panty Professionals division 1s to
provide recrutment, predommately intenm recruitment, and
graduate placement services, to a dverse range of clients In
2015 tts clients’” market sectors included central and local
government within the public sector and FMCG, Insurance, Oil,
and Transport In the pnvate sector

The prncipal activities of the Panty Consultancy Services dmvision
compnse business inteligence solutions, delivenng creative
technology solutions, and the resals of latest technology
egupment Panty Consultancy Services delivered its services
dunng the year to central government departments in the public
sector, and to Manufactunng, Oll, Retail, IT, Telecommunications
and Automotive clients in the pnvate sector

Review of business and future developments

A review of the business and its outlook, mcluding commentary
on the key performance indicators of turnover, gross margin,
contnbution, debtor days and net debt, and the pnncipal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group 1s included n the Chairman'’s
Statement, Strategy, Operating Review and Financial Review on
pages 2 to 9 The Group’s sccial, environmental and ethical
policies are set out on page 13 A statement on the application
of the going concern principle 1s set out below Detalls of
financial Instruments are set out In note 22 to the financial
statements Each of the above I1s iIncorporated in this report by
reference

Group results

The Group loss from continuing operations before taxation for
the year was £3,909,000 (2014 £408,000} after charging
non-recunng items of £4,052,000 (2014 £814,000) After a tax
expense of £6,000 {2014 £25,000) and a loss after tax from
discontinued operations of €4,000 (2014 £5,000), the retamned
loss of £3,919,000 (2014 £438,000) has been transferred to
reserves The results for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 24

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend a final dvidend (2014 nil
pence per ordinary share) The total dvidends for the year were
nil pence per ordinary share (2014 nil pencea per crdinary share)

Pension

The Group cperates a defined contrnbution pension scheme
There i1s also a defined benefit scheme which s closed both to
new members and to future service accrual Details of the
defined benefit pension scheme are given in note 24

Purchase of own shares

At the end of the year, the Company had authonty, under the
shareholders’ resclution of 27 May 2015, to purchase in the
market 10,172,652 of the Company’s ordinary shares at prices
ranging between two pence and an amount equal to 105% of
the average of the middle market prices quoted in the five
business days immediately preceding the day of purchase No
purchases were made dunng the year The Directors intend to
seek renewal of this authonty at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting

Board of Directors

Biographical information on each of the Directors as at

16 March 2016 15 set out on page 10, together with details of
membership of the Board committees

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Alan
Rommel and Mike Aspinall, who were both appointed after the
announcement of the 2015 AGM, will retire and offer

themselves for re-election at the 2016 Annual General Meeting

Directors’ nterests

The Directors’ beneficial Interests in the ordinary share capital of
the Company are set out within the remuneration report on
page 22

Principal shareholders 4

At the close of business on 8 March 2016 (being the latest
practical date pnor to the signing of the Directors’ Report) the
Company had received notification of the following substantial
interests representing over 3% of the issued share capital

Number of Percentage

Ordinary 2p shares held

Hargreave Hale Limited 15,056,315 14 79
Philip Swinstead 14,958,215 14 69
Kik & Co 6,557,322 6 44
Dawid Courtley 6,521,739 6 40
Timothy Watts 5,140,000 505
Dominion Heldings 4,950,000 4 86
Citnne Investments 4,823,766 474
Barclays Wealth 3,765,423 370
TD Direct Investing 3,104,269 305
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Directors’ Report continued

Capital structure

The Company has two classes of shares in 1ssue, ordinary
shares of 2p and deferred shares of 0 04p The ordinary shares
are listed on the London Stock Exchange and ordinary
shareholders are entitled to vote at Company meetings, to
receive dividends and to the return of therr capital in the event of
hquidation, with the exception of ordinary shares held by the
Panty Group plc Employee Share Ownership Trust which are not
entitled to receive dividends The deferred shares are nol listed,
have no voting nghts, no nghts to dwvidends and the nght only to
a very imited return on capital In the event of hquidation

The Directors are not aware of any restrictions on transfers of
shares in the Company or on voting nghts or of any agreements
between holders of the Company's shares which may result in
such restnctions

Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with the factors hkely
to affect its future development, performance and position are
set out above (Review of business and future developments)
The financial posttion of the Group, its cash flows, iquidity
positton and borrowing facilities are described in the Financial
Review on pages 7 to 9 and 1n note 22 to the financial
statements Note 22 also ncludes the Group's objectives for
managing capital

As outlined In note 22, the Group meets its day to day working
caprtal requirements through an asset-based lending facility The
faciity contans certain financial covenants which have been met
throughout the penod The current facility is subject to a
minimum penod up to 31 December 2016, at which point the
faciity becomes evergreen, roling over on the same terms, with
six months' notice from erther party The bank has not drawn to
the attention of the Group any matters to suggest that this
faciity will not be continued on acceptable terms

The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of
reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that
the Group will be able to operate within the level of its current
faciity for the foreseeable future

After making enquines, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate
resources to continue It operational existence for the
foresesable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the
going concern basts In preparng the Annual Report and
Accounts

The Company Is not party to any significant agreements that
take effect, alter or terminate upon a ¢hange of control of the
Company following a takeover bid There are no agreements
between the Company and its Directors or employees providing
for compensation for loss of office or employment that occurs
because of a takeover tid

Payments to suppliers

The Group seeks to abide by the payrment terms agreed wath
supplers when it 1s satisfied that the supplier has prowided the
goods or services n accordance with the agreed terms and
conditions In the United Kingdom and Ireland the Group agrees
payment terms with its supphers when it enters nto binding
purchase contracts
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Corporate social responsibility

The Group recogrises Its corporate social responsibiities and
reports on these In a separate statement of sooial,
environmental and ethical policies on page 13 This statement
covers the Group's Employment Policies, Environmental Policy
and Health and Safety Policy

Directors’ and officers’ hability insurance and indemnity
The Company has purchased insurance to cover its Directors
and officers against their costs in defending themselves in any
legal proceedings taken aganst them in that capacity and in
respect of damages resulting from the unsuccessful defence of
any proceedings

Corporate Governance
The Corporate Governance Report on pages 14 to 17 forms
part of the Directors' Report

Auditor

Resolutions will be propesed at the Annual General Meeting to
reappont KPMG LLP as auditor to the Company and to
authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration

Post Balance Sheet Events
There were no matenal post balance sheet events

Annual General Meeting

The resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting,
together with the explanatory notes, will appear in the Notice of
the Annual General Meeting which will be circulated with the
annual report when sent to all Shareholders

By order of the Board

/;{{,‘(71)3 {a’/'z///

Mike Aspinall
Director
16 March 2016




Social, Environmental and Ethical Policies

Employment policies

As a professional services business, Panty's strength denves
from the commitment, capability and cultural diversity of its
employees The Group ams to adopt a policy of diversity at alt
levels including selection, role assignment, teamwork and
ndmdual career development The Group encourages the
participation of all employees in the operation and development
of the business by offering open access to senior management,
ncluding the Executive Directors, and adopting a policy of
regular communications through road shows and the intranet
The Group incentivises employees through share-based
incentives and the payment of bonuses and commissions linked
to performance cbjectives Where appropnate these objectives
are Iinked to profitability The Group also has a structured
approach to performance appraisal and career devetopment
and ensures that every employee has an annual performance
review and has clear objectives and performance standards

Health & safety

The health and safety of Panty's employees is paramount
Group policy 1s to provide and maintain safe and healthy
working conditions, equipment and systems of work for all
employees and to provide such information, traruing and
supervision as 15 needed for this purpose

Appropnate wnitten health and safety information outlining the
Group's policy In each area I1s 1ssued to all new employees This
ncludes

* First aid — Each office has a person qualified In first aid First
aid boxes are readily accessible and records kept of all
accidents and injunes

* Firg safety — Each office has an evacuation marshal who will
hanse with building management or local emergency
authonties, as appropnate Evacuation assembly points are
agreed for every location and a full evacuation carried out
every six months Fire alarms are tested regularly

* Employees’ health — Any employee who believes he/she 15
suffenng from an lllness or condition related to ther working
environment Is encouraged to report this to his/her manager
for nvestigation

Annual Health and Safety audits are carned out at every Panty
office to ensure high standards are mantaned

As part of its benefits package Parity offers a number of benefits
to support the health and well being of its staff, as wall as an
Employee Assistance helpline

Social responsibilities

it 1s Group policy to be a good corporate citizen wherever 1t
operates As part of the Group’s social responsibility, employees
are encouraged to become involved In therr local communities
and fund raising events for chanty

Envircnmentat policy

While Panty Group's operations by therr very nature have
minimal environmental impact, the Group recognises its
responsibilities to protect and sustan the environment and its
resources The Group's policy 1s to meet or exceed the statutory
requirements in this area and it has adopted a code of good
envircnmental practice, particularly in its main areas of
environmental impact, namely energy efficiency, use and
recychng of resources and transport

Transpori

Public transport 1s used whenever possible Interest-free season
ticket loans are made to staff as part of the benefits package
Teleconference facilities are extended to man office locations to
minimise business travel and increase efficiency PCs {portable
or desktop) are made available to staff where needed to facilitate
home working and minimise the need to travel to offices

PO o O B o

Energy

Only energy-effictent computers and penpherals are acquired
and they are turned off at the end of each day As anormal part ., «
of its operations the Group seeks to occupy offices which have  _ __
efficient bulding management systems and, ideally, low energy -
highting Office dighting 1s turned off at the end of each day

Whenever economically justifiable, the paper and other
cansumables used are made from envircnmentally-fnendly or
recycled matenal or from renewable resources

Recycling .
The Group makes every effort to recycle office paper and
envelopes Appropriate containers are provided at all offices and
all paper collected 1s sent to recycling plants The Group also
recycles as much other matenal, such as toner carindges, as 1s
economically viable When replaced, computers and penipherals
are offered to employees at market value, loca! schools or
chanties, or sent to recychng plants

Ethics !
Panty Group 1s committed to mantairing the highest standards .+
of ethics, professionalism and business conduct as well as
ensuring that we act in accordance with the law at all imes The
Group supports and promotes the principles of equat

opportunities In employment and promotes a culture where

every employee 15 treated fairly A culture of teamwork, -
openness, Integnty and professionalism forms a key element of

our company principles and values which sets out the standards

of behaviour we expect from all cur employees
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Corporate Governance Report

Introduction

As the Company 1s AIM listed, it 15 not required to follow the
provisions of The UK Corporate Governance Code published by
the Financial Reporting Council in September 2014 {the Code)
However, the Board continues to maintain that high standards of
corporate governance remain a key pnonty and that it will seek
to continue to follow the Code as far as 1s practicable and
appropnate, having regard to the size and resources of the
Company and to the Quoted Companies Alliance Corporate
Governance Code for Small and Mid-Size Quoted Companies
Accordingly, this report sets out how the Company applies
elements of the Code that are deemed appropriate

Going concern

The Board confirms that, after making enquines, the Directors
have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group
have adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to
adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the accounts
Further details are outhned n the Directors’ Report on page 11

The workings of the Board and its Committees

The Board

At the date of this report, the Board compnses the Non-
Executive Charman, Lord Freeman, Non-Executive Director,
Neal Ransome, Group Chief Executive, Alan Rommel and Group
Finance Director, Mike Aspinall Dunng the year Alastar Woolley
stepped down as Group Finance Director on 27 May 2015,
Dawid Courtley stepped down as a Non-Executive Director on
13 August 2015, Andy Law stepped down as Executive
Charman of the SuperCommunications division on 13 August
2015, Philp Swinstead OBE stepped down as Group Executive
Chairman on 4 November 2015 and Paul Davies stepped down
as Executive Chairman of the Panty Professionals division on

4 November 2015 Alan Romme! joned the board on 13 August
2015 as Chief Executive Officer of the Panty Professionals
division and was appointed Group Chief Executive on

4 November 2015, and Mike Aspinall joined the board as Group
Finance Director on 14 September 2015 The table on page 20
sets out the dates of tenure of the current Directors on the
Board The Directars’ biograptigs, which are set out on

page 10, dlustrate the range of business backgrounds, skills,
ndependence and experience contnibuted by each Board
member

Non-Executive Chairman

The Non-Executive Chatrman, Lord Freeman, is responsible for
the leadership of the Board, ensunng its effectveness on all
aspects of its role This Includes ensuring that Board meetings
are held in an open manner, that the Directors receive accurate,
timely and clear information and allowing sufficient time for
agenda tems to be discussed Annual appraisals are held of
each Director, providing feedback and reviewing any traming or
development needs The Chairman is also responsible for
effective communications with shareholders, and relaying any
shareholder concerns to the Directors During the year both the
Group Executive Charman and subsequently the Non-Executive
Chairman met the Non-Executive Directors without the
Executive Directors present

Senior Independent Director

Lord Freeman acted as the Deputy Chairman and Senior
independent Director during Philp Swinstead's tenure as Group
Executive Chairman One of his pnme responsibilities was to
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provide a sounding board for the Group Executive Charman as
well as serving as an intermediary for the other Directors when
necessary He was also an additional contact point for
shareholders if they had reason for concern, when contact
through the normal channels of the Group Executive Chairman
and other Executive Directors had falled to resolve ther
concerns, or where such contact was inappropnate Neal
Ransome became the Senior Independent Director when Lord
Freeman stepped up to the role of Non-Executive Chairman
Dunng the year Lord Freeman, as Senior Independent Director,
met the Non-Executive Director without the Group Executive
Chairman and the other Executive Directors present

Re-election of Directors

All Directors will submit themselves for election or re-glection at
the next Annual General Meeting following therr appomntment
and retue by rotation, offenng themselves for re-election The
names of those Directors submitted for election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting are set out in the Directors'
report on page 11 and in the separate Notice of Annual General
Meeting sent to all Shareholders The Non-Executive Charman
confirms that the performance of each Director continues to be
effective and the Indmduals continue to demonstrate
commutiment to therr role

Company Secretary

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, who 1s respenstble for ensunng that Board
procedures, applicable rules and regulations are observed
There 15 an agreed procedure for Directors to obtan
independent professional adwvice, if necessary, at the Company’s
expense

New Directors receive a comprehensive, formal and talored
induction to the Group's operations including corporate
governance, the legislative framework and visits to Group
premises

Board meetings

The Board has meetings scheduled regularly throughout the
year to set long term objeclives and to monitor progress agamnst
those objectives Additional meetings are also held as business
dictates A table showing the number of meetings of the Board
and its Committees held dunng the year, ang attendance at
those meetings by each Board member, 1S set out on page 15
The Board maintains close dialogue by email, telephone and
conference calls between scheduled meetings The Board has a
formal schedule of matters reserved for its specific approval
which was reviewed dunng the year and includes a review of
Group strategic, operattonal and financial matters such as
proposed acquisitions and divestments It approves the annual
accounts and intenm report, the annual budget, significant
transactions, major capital expenditure and reviews the
effectiveness of the system of internal control and the nsks
faced by the Group It covers all contrels, mcluding financial,
operational, comphance and nsk management Authonty Is
delegated to management through Group authonsation mits on
a structured basis, ensunng that proper management oversight
exists at the appropnate level The Group authorsation levels
were reviewed by the Board in November 2015

All members of the Board are nommally supplied in advance of
meehings with the agenda and supporting papers covering the
matters which are to be censidered If unable to attend a
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meeting the Director 1s able to prowde feedback to the
Chairman, the Charr of the Committee or the Company
Secretary and their comments are then communicated at the
meeting A procedure exists for the Directors, 1n the furtherance
of ther duties, to take independent professional adwice if
required If a Director has any concerns about a particular 1ssue,
such ¢oncerns are recorded in the minutes of the refevant Board
meeting In the event that a Director resigned over a matter that
was of concern to him, such concerns would be communicated
to the other Directors  All Directors have the opportunity to
undertake relevant training

The operational businesses are divided Into two separate
dvsions, Panty Professionals compnsing Panty Resources and
Talent Management and Panty Consultancy Services {formerly
known as SuperCommunications) comprsing Parnty Solutions
and Imtion Each business has a Managing Director The
operational boards of each business mest monthly The
meetings are attended by the Group Chief Executive and/or the
Group Finance Director and relevant members of ther finance
and operational teams Any key 1ssues ansing from these
meetings are reported to the Board Non-executive Directors are
Invited to visit the Group’s premises and are encouraged to have
an informal dialogue with the dvisions

Performance evaluation

The Board undertook an annual evaluation of its own
performance and that of ts Committees and indwvidual Directors
In the year The performance of the Non-Executive Chairman
was reviewed by the other Non-Executive Director The outcome
of the evaluation of the Board I1s reviewed by the Board as a
whale and the results are used to assist the Board in developing
its approach going forward

Board balance and independence

The Board has a balance of Executive and Non-Executive
[irectors such that no indvdual or small group of Individuals
can dominate the Board's decision making The Board has a
range of backgrounds and skills The Non-Executive Directors
ensure that iIndependent judgement i1s brought to Board
discusstions and decisions The Board are aware of the
mpaortance of attaining an improved gender balance

The Board considers that there are no relationships or
circumstances which are ikely to affect the independent
judgement of the Non-Executive Directors

Attendance at board and committee meetings

Dunng the year 11 scheduled Board meetings and 3 ad hoc
Board meetings were convened as necessary to deal with
vanous matters Details of attendance at Board meetings 1s
summarsed below Committee attendance 1s shown for
Committee members only

Board Audit Nominations Remuneration
Number held 14 3 4 4]
Number attended:
Philip Swinstead® 8/10 - - h -
Lord Freeman 12/14 3/3 4/4 6/6
Paul Davies® 9/10 - - -
Alastair Woolley* 3/5 - - -
Dawvid Courtley® 7/8 1/1 3/3 373
Andy Law® 5/8 - - -
Neal Ransome 12/14 3/3 4/4 6/6
Alan Rormmel’ 6/6 - - -
Mike Aspinall® 5/5 - - -

2 Stepped down from the Board 4 November 2015
2 Stepped down from the Board 4 November 2015
4 Stepped down from the Board 27 May 2015

All Directors who were members of the Board at the time attended the Group s Annual General Meeting on 27 May 2015

5 Stepped down from the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination ard Rermuneration Commutiees 13 August 2015

8 Stepped down from the Board 13 August 2015
T Appointed to the Board 13 August 2015
8 Apponted to the Board 14 September 2015
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Corporate Governance Report contnued

Committees

The Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees of the
Board each have formal written terms of reference These terms
of reference are made avalable on request to the Company
Secretary, can be inspected at the Company's head coffice and
are also avallable in the Corporate Governance section of the
Group's website

Audit Commitiee

Dunng the year the Audit Commitiee was chared by Neal
Ransome Details of Neal Ransome's recent and relevant
financial expenence are set out In his biography on page 10 The
Audit Committee meets three times a year Lord Freeman s the
other member of the Audit Committee, David Courtley was a
member In the year until 13 August 2015

Aucht committee meetings are attended by the external auditors
and all of the Executive Directors, at the invitation of the
Committee The external auditors meet separately with the Audit
Committee on request, without the presence of the Executive
Directors, to ensure open communication

The Audt Committes reviews and, as appropnate, actively
engages In the processes for financial reporting, iInternal control,
nsk assessment, audit, comphance assurance and considers
the independence of the Group's external auditor as well as the
effectiveness of the Group's system of accounting, its mternal
financial controls, external audit process and nsk management
The Audit Committes’s principal terms of reference include

* the oversight responsibiities described in the foregoing
paragraph,

* reviewing compliance with laws, regulations and the Group's
code of conduct and policies,

* monitonng the integnty of the Group’s financial statements
and announcements relating to the Group’s financial
performance and reviewing significant financial reporting
Judgements, changes in accounting policies and practices,
significant adjustments resulting from the audit and the
apphgation of the going concern assumption,

* reviewing the findings of the external audit with the external
auditor,

* making recommendations to the Board, for it to put to the
shareholders for therr approval, regarding the appointment,
re-appointment and rermoval of the external auditor and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor,

* monttonng and reviewing the external auditor’s independence
and the effectiveness of the audit process,

* developing and implementing policy on the engagement of
the external auditors to supply non-audit services,

* reviewing the nsk management framework and nsk
assessments,

* reviewing the Group's arangements for its employees to
raise concerns, In confidence, about possible wrong doing in
financial reporting or other matters, and

* reviewing and monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company's internal financial controls, internal control, and
nsk management systems

In order to ensure an appropnate balance between cost
effectiveness, objectivity and ndependence, the Audit
Committee reviews the nature of all services, including non-audit
work, provided by the external auditor each year The Group
normally expects to retain the external auditor to provide
audit-related services, Including work n relation to shareholder
circulars and similar services The externa auditor provided
audit-related services dunng 2015, details of which are set out
in note 3 to the accounts

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee compnses all of the Non-
Executive Directors and I1s Chaired by Lord Freeman Details of
the responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are set out
in the remuneration report on pages 18 to 22 Where necessary,
specialist external consultants are used to assist the Committee
Dawvid Courtley was a member in the year unti 13 August 2015

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee compnses all of the Non-Executive
Directers and 1s chared by Lord Freeman Dawvid Courtley was a
member in the year until 13 August 2015 It s responsible for
proposing candidates for appointment to the Board, having due
regard to the balance and structure of the Board, as well as
succession planning Durng the year the Commuttee considered
the size, composition, skills, expenence and independence of
the Board having regard to the requrements of the business

The process for new Board appointments includes an intial
search, preliminary interviews and discussions Foliowing this
process, recommendations are then made by the Committee to
the Board on ment against objective cntena Where necessary
external recrutment consultants are used to assist the process

Investor relations

The Company engages where possible Iin regular dialogue with
its major Sharehotders through presentations and meetings after
the announcement of the Group's full year and intenm results
Private and institutional shareholders are given an opportunity to
communicate directly with the Board at the Annual General
Meeting Shareholders' quenes received via the Company
Secretary’s emall address at cosec@panty net or by telephone
to the Group's head office are responded to In person by the
Company Secretary or by another appropnate employee

All members of the Board usually attend the Annual General
Meeting The chasrmen of the Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees will normally be avalable to answer
Shareholders' questions at that meeting Notice of the Meeting
18 posted to Shareholders with the report and accounts no fewer
than 21 clear days prior to the date of the Annual General
Meeting The information sent to Shareholders includes a
summary of the business o be covered at the Annual General
Meeting, where a separate resolution 1s proposed for each
substantive matter The Group's annual report and accounts,
intenm report and other stock exchange announcements are
published on the Group's website at www parity net

Annual Report

The Annual Report 1s designed to present a farr, balanced and
understandable view of the Group's actvities and prospects
The Operating & Financial Review provides an assessment of
the Group’s affars and pesition The Annual Report and Intenim
Report are sent to all Shareholders on the Register




Statement of Directors’ responsibihities in respect of the
Annual Report and the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparnng the Annual Report
and the Group and parent company financial statements In
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare group and
parent company financial statements for each financial year
Under that law they are required to prepare the group financial
statements in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the EU and
applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent company
financial statements on the same basis

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr
view of the state of affars of the group and parent company and
of therr profit or loss for that penod In prepanng each of the
group and parent company financial statements, the Drectors
are required to

= select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent,

« state whether they have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it I INnappropnate to presume that the group and the
parent company will continue in bustness

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the parent company and
enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reascnably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other iregulanties

Under applcable law and regulations, the Directors are also
responsible for prepanng a Drectors’ Report that complies with
that faw and those regulations

Website publication

The Diractors are responsible for ensunng the annual report and
the financtal statements are made availlable on the Panty Group
website Financial statements are published on the Company's
website In accordance with AIM company requirements
governing the preparation and dissernination of financial
statements The maintenance and integnty of the Company's
website 1s the responsibility of the Directors The Directors’
responsibility also extends to the on-going integnty of the
financial statements contained therein

tnternal control

The Board 18 ultimately responsible for the Group's system of
internal control and for reviewing Its effectiveness and 1s assisted
In this respect by the Audit Committee Such a system i1g
designed to manage rather than elminate the nsk of faillre to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or
loss The Group’s system of internal control, which matenally
complies with the Financial Reporting Council’s Risk
Management, Internal Control and Related Financial and
Business Reporting September 2014 guidance has been m
place throughout the year and up to the date of this report The
Directors confirm that they have reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group's system of internal controls during the year

The Group did not consider it necessary to have a separate
internal audit function, but will continue to keep the need under
review

Risk management
The Group 1s exposed through its operations to the foliowtng
financial nsks

+ |Interest rate nsk,

* Foreign currency nsk,
* Liquidity nsk, and

* Credtt risk

The policies for managing these nsks are set by the Board
following recommendations from the Group Finance Director
Certan nsks are managed centrally, while others are managed
locally following guidetings commurucated from the centre The
policies for each of the above nsks, and the nature and extent of
those nsks, are described in detail In note 22 to the financial
statements Other nsks and uncertainties are discussed In the
Financial Review on page 7

Each of the persons who 1s a Director as at the date of approval
of this annual report confirms that

s 5o far as the Director 1g aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the Company's auditors are unaware,
and

= the Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have
taken as a Director in order to make himself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company's auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act
2006

Suzanne Chase
Company Secretary !
16 March 2016
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Remuneration Report

Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee compnses Lord Freeman as
Charrman, and Neal Ransome David Courtley was a member
In the year until 13 August 2015 Directors are excluded from
discussions about ther personal remuneration

The committee 1s responsible for reviewing the Group's
remuneration policy, the emoluments of the Executive Directors
and other senior management and the Group’s pension
arrangements and for making recommendations thereon to the
Board The committee also makes recommendations to the
Board in respect of awards of options under the Senior
Executive Share Oplion Plan, Executive Share Option and
Sharesave Schemes and in respect of employees who should
be invited to participate In the Co-investment Scheme It also
reviews the terms of service contracts with senior employees
and Executive Directors and any compensation arrangements
resulting from the termination by the Company of such
contracts

The committee has access to external advisors to assist it with
ensuring that salary and benefit packages are competitive and
appropriate In addition, committee members keep themselves
fully informed of all relevant developments and best practice by
reading the crrculars on remuneration and related matters that
the Company recewves from its adgvisers and, if appropnate, by
attending seminars Pension advice 1s provided by Cartwnght
Group Limited Advice on share options and Co-investment
Plans i1s provided by Pinsent Masons, who also provide other
legal services to the Group

The Beard determines the remuneration of all Non-executive
Directors within the imits set out n the Company's Articles of
Associatton Non-executive Directors are not involved in any
deaisions about therr own remuneration Details of Directors’
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set cut
in the table on page 20

Remuneration policy

Panty ams to recruit, motivate and retain high calibre
executives capable of achieving the objectives of the Group and
to encourage and reward appropnately supenor performance in
a manner which enhances shareholder value Accordingly, the
Group operates a remuneration policy which ensures that there
IS a clear ink to business strategy and a close alignment with
shareholder interests and current best practice, and ams to
ensure that senior executives are rewarded fairly for therr
respective iIndmdual contnbutions to the Group's performance

The four key elements of the remuneration package of senior
executives, including Executive Directors, mn the Group in 2015
were basic annual salary and benefits In kind, performance
bonus payments, long term incentives including share options,
and pension arrangements

Salanes and benefits are reviewed annually In order to assess
the competitiveness of the pay and benefits packages offered
by the Group, comparnsons are made to those offered by
similar companies These are chosen with regard to the size of
the company {turnover, profits and employee numbers}, the
diversity and complexity of their businesses, the geographical
spread of their businesses, and therr growth, expansion and
change profile

Performance bonus
The terms of the incentive bonus for Executive Directors are
agreed annually For 2015 no target was set and no

performance bonuses were earned by, or paid to, Executive
Directors in 2015

Long-term incentive arrangements

The long-term Incentive arrangements operated by the
Company for Executive Directors compnse Share Option
Schemes mcluding a Co-nvestment Scheme

Share option schemes

During 2015 the Group operated three types of share option
scheme an Executive Share Option Plan, a Savings Related
Share Option Scheme (Sharesave Scheme), and a Senior
Executive Share Cption Plan

Executive share option plans

The Group operates both an HMRC Approved Share Option
Plan and an Unapproved Share Option Plan for optrons
awarded to UK employees in excess of the HMRC imit of
£30,000 Share opttons are granted to Executive Directors and
other senior employees over a penod of tme and according to
performance

The rules of the Executive Share Option Plans allow for annual
grants to be awarded equivalent to a value of up to one times
salary or up to two times salary in exceplional circumstances A
hmit of 15% of the iIssued share capital of the Company in a ten
year penod, on a rolling basis, 1s applicable to the headroom
avallable to award options over the life of the Schemes Rules
of the current Plans expire in May 2019 The terms and
condrions of existing share options have not been vaned in the
year

Executive Share Options granted after 2004 are exercisable in
normal crcumstances between three and ten years after the
date of grant The exercise of the options 1s conditional upon
the share pnce either outperforming the average Total
Shareholder Return performance of a comparator group
compnsing a basket of companies In the IT senices sector, or
outperforming a target price

The exercise of share options I1s satisfied etther through shares
issued by the Company or through purchases in the market via
the Employee Benefit Trust In the event that an employee
resigns, the options that they hold will lapse Options are
granted at nil cost The option exercise price IS set at the
closing mid-market share price on date of grant without any
discount

On 15 Apnl 2009 150,000 share options were awarded under
this scheme to Alan Romme! The exercise pnce of the options
1S 9 pence, and the options are subject to a performance
condition based upen the Group's share price outperformmng
the average total shareholder return of a comparator group of IT
companies The options vested after 3 years and the
performance condition was met The options lapse in 10 years
from the grant date If not exercrsed

On 19 May 2010 a further 150,000 share options were
awarded under this scheme to Alan Rommel The exercise
price of the options I1s 8 75 pence, and the options are subject
to a performance condition based upon the Group's share pnce
outperforming the average total shareholder return of a
comparator group of IT companies The options vested after

3 years and the performance condition was met The options
lapse in 10 years from the grant date if not exercised

On 28 September 2010 a further 100,000 share options were
awarded under this scheme to Alan Rornmel The exercise




pnce of the options 1s 7 5 pence, and the options are subject to
a performance condition based upon the Group's share price
outperforming the average total sharsholder return of a
comparator group of IT companies The options vested after

3 years and the performance condition was met The options
lapse in 10 years from the grant date if not exercised

On 8 March 2013 a further 160,000 share options were
awarded under this scheme to Alan Rommel The exercise
price of the options 1s 26 5 pence, and the options are subject
to a performance condition being that the share pnce must be
greater than or equal to 33 125 pence for 5§ consecutive days
The options vested after 3 years and will lapse in 10 years from
the grant date f not exercised

On 18 March 2014 a further 600,000 share options were
awarded under this scheme to Alan Rommel The exercise
price of the options 1s 21 12 pence, and the options are subject
to a performance condition being that the share pnce must be
greater than or equal to 26 4 pence for 5 consecutive days The
options will vest in 3 years and lapse in 10 years from the grant
date if not exercised

On 27 November 2014 2,000,000 share options were awarded
under this scheme to Andy Law The exercise price of the
options 1s 16 75 pence, and the options are subject to a
performance condition being that the share pnce must be
greater than or equal to 20 94 pence for 5 consecutive days
The options will vast In 3 years and lapse in 10 years from the
grant date if not exercised Mr Law stepped down from the
Board on 13 August 2015, and his options lapsed on his
termination date 1 March 2016

Senior Executive Share Option Plan

The Senior Executive Share Option Plan was approved by
sharehclders on 19 February 2009 and renewed at an EGM on
25 QOctober 2010 The maximum number of shares over which
options may be granted under the Senior Executive Share
Option Plan 1s 10% of the company's 1ssued share capital

Following his appointment as CEQC, Paul Davies was granted
2,851,633 opticns under the Sentor Executive Share Option
Plan in October 2010 The exercise price 1s 10 pence per share
and there are no performance conditions The options had all
vested by the balance sheet date Mr Davies resigned from the
Board on 4 November 2015, and surrendered his options under
this scheme on the date of his resignation

There are no other live options under the Senior Executive
Share Option Plan

Sharesave schemes

All UK smployees, including the Executive Directors, are eligible
to participate in the Group's savings related option scheme
(Sharesave Scheme) which enables them to subscribe for
ordinary shares in the Company Options granted under the
Sharesave Scheme do not have performance related conditons
attached to them

There were no grants made under the Sharesave scheme in
2015

Co-investment scheme

The Co-investment Scheme was approved by shareholders in
2004 Members are invited to jon by the Board, having regard
to the recommendations of the remuneration committee At
present the scheme 1s open to the Chief Executive Officer,
Group Finance Director and the Managing Directors of the

business units and one other senior executive Under the rules
of the scheme, members are entitled to invest up to 50% of the
bonus that they earn under the Annual Performance Bonus
Scheme In Panty shares The shares are held on bshalf of the
employee and, providing the employee remains in Parity's
employment, any bonuses invested wilk be matched in number
by the Company on a sliding scale of up to 1 5 for 1 at the end
of a defined penod of up 1o three years following the date of
purchase

The award of matching shares 1s subject to the share pnce
outperforming the average Total Sharehotder Return
performance of a comparator group comprising a basket of
companes In the IT services sector and the penod during
which the employee has to hold shares before they are
matched by the Company increases from one year to three
years Depending on the Group's performance over those three
years, the shares purchased by the employee will be matched
on a shding scale up 1o a maximum of 1 5-tg-1 for outstanding
performance

None of the Directors have awards outstanding under the
Co-investment Scheme

Share price

The Panty Group plc mid-market share price on 31 December
2015 was 11 5 pence Dunng the penod 1 January to

31 December 2015 shares traded at market pnces between

7 37 pence and 16 12 pence

Directors’ pension information

Alan Rommel and Mike Aspinall are entitled to a contnbutory
company pension conlribution of 5% of basic salary Up-until
30 June 2014, Paul Davies was entitled to a non-contnbutory
company pension contnbution of 11% of basic salary As from
1 July 2014, Paul Davies has received an amount equal to 11%
of his basic salary as an additional payment which 1s paid as
part of his monthly salary as a director, up to the date he
stepped down from the board Alastar Woolley was entitled to
a contnbutory company pension contnbution of 5% of basic
salary up to his resignation Andy Law was entitled to a
contnbutory company pension contnbution of 2% of basic
salary up to his resignation

Non-executive Directors’ remuneration

The Board determines the remuneration of the Non-axecutive
Directors with the benefit of independent advice when required
The fees are set at a level which will attract indwviduals with the
necessary expenence and ahility to make a significant
contnbution to the Group and are benchmarked agamnst those
fees paid by other UK listed companies

The Non-executive Directors do not receive bonuses or pension
contnbutions and are not eligible for grants under any of the
Group's share incentive schemes They are entitled to be
rembursed for reasonable expenses incurred by them in
carrying out their duties as Directors of the Company

Service contracts and letters of appointment

The Group’'s policy 1s that no Director has a service contract
with a notice penod of greater than one year or has provision
for pre-determined compensation on termination which
exceeds one year's salary, bonus and benefits in kind Non-
executive Directors have letters of appotintment which set out
{he terms of therr appoaintments  All Board appointments are
subject to the Company's articles of association
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Remuneration Report continued

Contractual arrangements for current Directors are summansed below

Director Contract date Notice penod Contractual termination payment
Lord Freeman' 1 July 2007 n/a n/a
Alan Rommel 13 August 2015 12 months 12 months rolling
Mike Aspinall 14 September 2015 6 months 6 months rolling
Neal Ransome’ 28 September 2013 n/a wa

! The eppointment of Non-executve Birectors ts termmable at the will of the parties

Other non-executive posts

Subject to the approval of the Board, the Executive Directors may hold external non-executive appointments The Group believes
that such appointments provide a valuable opportunity in terms of personal and professional development Fees derved from such
appointments may be retained by the Executive Director concerned

Directors' remuneration

The remuneration of the Directors who served dunng the year 1s set out below

Salary/ Compensaton for Company pension Share Based
feas Benefits loss of office  Total emoluments contnbutions'? Payment
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £7000 £'000
Executive Directors
A Romme!' 56 5 - 61 3 10
M Aspinall? 41 4 - 45 2 -
P Swinstead?’ 228 - - 228 - -
P Davies?’ 114 16 - 130 - -
A Woolley® 65 5 43 113 3 (38)
A Lawt’ 125 3 - 128 3 46
Non-executive Directors
Lord Freeman 38 - - 38 - -
N Ransome 40 - - 40 - -
B Courtley® 25 - - 25 - -
Total emoluments 732 33 43 808 11 18




Directors’ remuneration continued

h
Salary/ Compensation Company pension Share Based
fees Benehis for loss of office Total emoluments contnbutions'? Payment
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £000 £ 000
Executive Directors

P Swinstead 280 - - 280 - -
P Davies? 183 18 - 20 12 -
A Woolley 155 10 - 165 31
A Law'™® 17 - - 17 - 4

Non-executive Directors
Lord Freeman 40 - - 40 - -
D Courtley 40 - - 40 - -
P Luff!! 17 - - 17 - -
N Ransome 40 - - 40 - -
Total emoluments 772 28 - 800 20 35

Nolea

' A Rommel was appointed on 13 August 2015
? M Aspinall was apponted on 14 September 2015
3 P Swinstead resigned as a Board director on 4 November 2015
* P Daves resigned as a Board director on 4 November 2015

& A Woolley resigned on 27 May 2015
& A Law resigned as a Board diractor on 13 August 2015

" Following ther respective resignations from the Board, P Swinstead, P Davies and A Law are serving their notice penods on gardening leave

4 [ Courtley resigned on 13 August 2015

® P Dawvies stepped down as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 July 2014, to become Charman of Panty Professionals dmision thereby continuing as a Board
director A revised Service Agreemant was entered into on that date

0 A Law was appointed 27 November 2014

" P Luff dit not stand for election en 29 May 2014

2 Company pansion contnbutions disclosed in the table above reprasent the contractual pension entitlements due to the Directors of the company

Executive Directors’ share options

Lapsed/
As at Surrendered Exercised Awarded As at Exercise
1 January in the n the inthe 31 December Exercise price

2015 year year year 2015 pencd per share
Paul Davies
Seruor Executive share 2,851,633 (2,851,633) - - - 20112017  £01000
option plan 2010 e B }
Alan Rommel
Executive share option plan
2009 150,000 - - - 150,000 2012-2019 £0 0900
2010 150,000 - - - 150,000 2013-2020 £00875
2010 100,000 - - - 100,000 2013-2020 £0 0750
202 40,000 (40,000) - - - 2015-2022 £0 2625
2013 160,000 - - - 160,000 2016-2023 £0 2650
2014 600,000 - - - 600,000 2017-2024 £0 2112
Sub-total 1,200,000 (40,000) - - 1,160,000
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Remuneration Report contnued

Executive Directors’ share options continued

Lapsed/

As at Surrendered Exercised Awardad As at Exercise
1 January n the in the nthe 31 December Exercise pnce
2015 vear year year 2015 penod per share
Alastair Woolley
Executive share option plan
2011 300,000 {300,000) - - - 2014-2021 £0 2800
2012 60,000 (60,000) - - - 2015-2022 £0 2625
2013 300,000 (300,000) - - - 2016-2023 £0 2625
2014 340,000 {340,000) - - ~  2017-2024 02112
Sub-total 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - - -
Andy Law
Executive share option plan
2014 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 2017-2024 L0 1675
Total 7,051,633 (3,891,633) - - 3,160,000

Directors’ interests in shares

The beneficial interests of the Directors who served dunng the year and therr families in the ordinary share capital of the Company

are shown below

At 31 December 2014
{or date of appointment

Shareholding as at
3t December 2015

if later) % 1ssued share capital  (or date of resignation) % issued share capital
Philip Swinstead’ 13,186,470 12 86 13,295,215 13.07
Lord Freeman 6,250 oM 6,250 001
Paul Davies 1,275,656 126 1,275,556 125
Alastair Woolley 56 - 56 -
Dawid Courtley 6,521,739 641 6,521,739 6 40
Andy Law - - - -
Alan Rommel 3,128 - 3,128 -
Mike Aspinall - - - -
Neal Ransome 33,000 003 33,000 003

' Following hus rasignation on 4 November 2015,

For and on behalf of the Board

MW»—

Lord Freeman

Charrman of the remuneration committee

16 March 2016
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Philip Swinstead s total interest in the Group had increased to 14 958 215 Crdinary Shares at the balance sheet date




Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Parity Group Plc

We have audited the financial statements of Panty Group Plc for
the year ended 31 December 2015 set out on pages 24 to 59
The financial reporting framework that has been appled in their
preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and, as
regards the parent company financial statements, as appled n
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we nught state to the company’s members those matters
we are required to state to them n an auditor's report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members, as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opintons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explaned more fully In the Directors' Responsibilities
Staterment set out on page 17, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial stalements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fatr view Qur responsibility 1s
to audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements In
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Irefand) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for
Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements I1s
provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at www
frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate

Optnion on financial statements
In our optnion

+ the financtal statements give a true and farr view of the state
of the group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at
31 December 2015 and of the group’s loss for the year then
ended,

* the group financial statements have been properly prepared
i accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

* the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU
and as appled in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, and

s the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescnbed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinion the information given 1n the Strategic Report and
the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial
statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report i respect of the following where the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, In our
opinion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not wisited by us, or

+ the parent company financial statements are nct In
agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

¢ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made, or

* we have not receved all the nformation and explanations we
require for our audrt

Andrew Turner (Senmior Statutory Auditor}

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

E14 5GL

London

United Kingdom

16 March 2016
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Non-recurring

Non-recurnng

Before non- tems Before non items
recurnng items 2015 Total  recurring tems 2014 Total
2015 {note 5) 2015 2014 (note 5) 2014
Notes £'000 £000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 84,842 - 84,842 92,264 - 82,264
Employee benefit costs 3 {7,800) {1,404} (9,204) (9,064) {405) (9,469)
Depreciation & amortisation 3 {719) (341) {1,060) (477) {129) (6086}
Impairment loss 14 - (1,994) {1,994) - - -
All other operating expenses 3 (75,614) (313) (75,927) {81,838) {280) (82,118}
Total operating expenses (84,133) (4,052) (88,185) {21,379) {814) (92,193)
Operating profit/(loss) 709 (4,052) (3,343) 885 {814) 71
Finance income 7 506 - 506 694 - 694
Finance costs 7 (1,072) - (1,072) {(1,173) - (1,173)
Profit/(loss) before tax 143 {4,052) {3,909) 406 (814) {408}
Tax (charge)/credit 11 (258) 252 {6) {184) 159 (25)
gﬁfgﬁ;c;ﬁggr;m:ar from (115 (3,800) (3,915) 222 (655) (433)
daconinued opesatons 8 @ - @ ®) - )
{Loss)/profit for the year
attnbutable to owners of {(119) {3,800) {3,919) 217 (655) (438)
the parent
E::‘.l:h?: diluted loss 12 (3 85p) {0 43p)

The notes on pages 29 to 59 form part of the financial statements




Statements of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Gonsolhdated
2015 2014 ,
Notes £'000 £ 000 '
Loss for the year {3,919) (438) !
Other comprehensive iIncome:
items that may be reclassified to profit or loss i
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 42 67 w |
42 67 2
iterns that will never be reclassified to profit or loss @ i
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension scheme 24 848 (649) .’;: !
ES K
848 (649) L
Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax 890 (582) 5 :
t
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to equity holders of
the parent {3,029) (1,020)
The notes on pages 29 to 59 form part of the financial statements i
i
=
z
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Statements of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2015

Share
Share Deferred premium Other Retained
capital shares reserve reserves earnings Total
Consohdated £1000 £1000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2015 2,035 14,319 33,189 44,160 {84,812} 8,891
Loss for the year - - - - (3,919) (3,919)
Exchange differences on translation of _ _ . _ 42 42
foreign operations
Remeasurement of defined benefit _ _ _ . 848 848
penston scheme
Issue of new ordinary shares 2 - 6 - - 8
Share options — value of employee services - - - - 152 152
At 31 December 2015 2,037 14,319 33,195 44,160 (87,689) 6,022
Share
Sharg Deferred premium Other Retained
k) capital shares reserve reserves 8arnngs Total
Consolidated £°000 £000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000
At 1 January 2014 2,033 14,319 33,183 44,160 {84,034) 9,661
Loss for the year - - - - {438) {438)
Exchange differences on translation of _ B _ _ 67 67
foreign operations
Remeasurement of defined benefit _ _ _ _ (649) (649)
pension scheme
Issue of new ordinary shares 2 - 6 - - 8
Share options — value of employee services - - - - 242 242
At 31 December 2014 2,035 14,319 33,189 44,160 (84,812) 8,891
Share
Share Deferred premium Other Retaned
capstal shares reserve reserves earmngs Total
Company £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2015 2,035 14,319 33,189 22,729 {51,657) 20,615
Loss for the year - - - - {1,558) (1,558)
Issue of new cordinary shares 2 - 6 - - 8
Share options — value of employee services - - - - 338 a8
At 31 December 2015 2,037 14,319 33,195 22,729 (53,177} 19,103
Share
Share Deferred premium Cther Retained
Capital shares reserve reserves earnngs Total
Company £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
At 1 January 2014 2,033 14,319 33,183 22,729 51,214) 21,080
Loss for the year - - - - {491} (491)
Issue of new ordinary shares 2 - 6 - - 8
Share options - value of employee services - - - - 48 48
At 31 December 2014 2,035 14,319 33,189 22,729 (51,657) 20,615

The notes on pages 29 to 59 form part of the financial statements




Statements of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2015

Company number 3539413 [P
Consohdated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014 i
Assets Notes £7000 £ 000 £2000 £000 '
Non-current assets l
Intangible assets and goodwill 13,14 7.113 9,307 - - ]
Property, plant and equipment 15 180 602 2 2
Trade and other receivables 18 - - 113,332 103,460 % E
Investment in subsidianes 30 - - 20,527 20,527 g i
Deferred tax assets 18 507 536 - - S
7,800 10,445 133,861 123,989 !:; !
Current assets . ; |
Stocks and work In progress 17 61 27 - - "
Trade and other recevables 18 15,619 15,524 3,350 3,407 |
Cash and cash equivalents 2,648 2,974 18 102 ‘
18,328 18,525 3,368 3509 | <, - 1
Total assets 26,128 28,870 137,229 127,498 1+ |
Liab:lihes I
Current labilities %, {
Loans and bomowings 19 {(10,016) (9,559) - - e
Trade and other payables 20 (8,574) (8,314) (9,561) "7.518) [
Provisions 21 - (82) - (69) T
{18,590) (17,955) (9,561) (7,587) e
Non-current liabihties 5 %?f i
Loans and borrowings 19 (11) (23) - - «’g )
Trade and other payables 20 - - (108,565) (99,296} :—‘H* ) j
Provisions 21 {(14) - - - “% "
Retirement benefit liability 24 (4,491) 2,101) - -
(1,516) (2,124)  (108,565) ©9,296) : '
Total habilities {20,106) {20,079 (118,126) (106,883 . -
Net assets 6,022 8,891 19,103 20,615 L
Shareholders' equity ' )
Called up share capital 25 16,356 16,354 16,356 16,354 [
Share premium account 23 33,195 33,189 33,195 33,189 :——I
Other reserves 23 44,160 44,160 22,729 22,729 ]
Retained earnings 23 (87,689} (84,812 (53,177) (51,657) l
Total shareholders’ equity 6,022 8,891 19,103 20,615

Approved by the Directors and authonsed for issue on 16 March 2016

The notes on pages 29 to 59 form part of the financial statements
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Hallonf

Alan Rommel Mike Aspinall
Chief Executive Officer Finance Director
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Statements of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Consoldated Company
2018 2014 2015 2014
Notes £'000 £ 000 £000 £000

Cash flows from operating activilies
Loss for year (3,919 {438) (1,558) (491)
Adjustments for
Finance income 7 (506) (694} (2,077) (2,357)
Finance expense 7 1,072 1,173 1,568 1,337
Share-based payment expense 10 152 242 as 48
Income tax expense/(credit) 11 6 25 {249) {332)
Amorisation of Intangible assets 13 546 216 - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 ° 173 261 1 1
Impairrment of goodwill 14 1,994 - - -
Loss on digposal of ntangible assets 13 3 - - -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5 L3 129 - -
Gain on acquisition 2 - (55} - -

{138) 859 (2,277) {(1,794)
Working Capital
Increase in stocks and work in progress {34) 8 - -
Decrease/(increase) n trade and other recevables {96} 838 (1,374) {1,701)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and cther payables 522 {1,836} 1,536 2,427
Decrease In provisions {68) (838} (68) (893)
Payments to retrement benefit plan 24 {28) (873) - -
Cash generated from operations 158 (1,858) (2,183) {1,961}
Income taxes receved/(paid) 23 9) - -
Net cash flows from operating activiies 181 (1,867) {2,183) (1,961)
Investing activities
Acqusition of subsidianes 9 (250) 623} - -
Purchase of intangible assets 13 (349) (1,064} - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 15 {92) (137) (1) (1}
Net cash used in investing activities (691) (1,824) (1) (N
Fimancing activities 5
Issue of crdinary shares ) 25 8 8 8 8
Proceeds from/(repayment of} finance faciity 476 (407} - -
Net movements on intercompany funding - - 2,391 2,320
Interest paid 7 {300} (312 {299) {301)
Net cach from financing activities 184 (711) 2,100 2,027
Net (decrease)/increase In cash and cash equivalents (326) 4,402) {84} 65
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 2,974 7,376 102 37
Effect of exchange rate movement an intercompany balances - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,648 2,974 18 102

The notes on pages 29 to 59 form part of the financial statements




Notes to the Accounts

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation
Panty Group plc {the “Company") 1s a company incorporated and domiciled in the UK

Both the parent company financial statements and the group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the
directors In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (*Adopted IFRSs™ On publishing
the parent company financial statements here together with the group financial statements, the Company 1s taking advantage of
the exemption in 5408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its indmdual Income statement and related notes that form a
part of these approved financial statements

The pnncipal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below The polcies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis The Group's business actvities, together with the
factors likely to affect its future developmenit, performance and postiton are set out In the Directors’ Report (Review of business
and future developments) The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, Iquidity position and borrowing faciities are
described in the Financial Review on pages 7 to 9 and in note 22 to the financial statements Note 22 also includes the Group's
* objectives for managing capital

As outlined in note 22, the Group meets its day to day working capital requirements through an asset-based finance facility The
facility contains certain financial covenants which have been met throughout the penod The cumrent facility 1s subject to a
rminimum pencd up to 31st December 2016, at which point the facility becomes evergreen rolling over on the same terms, with
six months' notice from either party The bank has not drawn to the attention of the Group any matters to suggest that thus
faciity will not be continued

The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the
Group will be able to operate within the level of its current facility for the foreseeable future

After making enquines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources
to continue in operational extstence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the Annual Report and Accounts

Basis of consolhidation
The consolidated financial statements compnse the financial statements of the Company and its subsidianes as at 31 December
2015 Subsidianes are entities controlled by the Group Control exists when the Group has

. existing nghts that give it the ability to direct the relevant activities that significantly affect the subsidiary's returns, and
. exposure, or nghts, to vanable returns from its involvemnent with the subsidiary, and
. the ability to use its power over the subsidiary to affect the amount of the Group's returns

The acquisition date 1s the date on which control 15 transferred to the acquirer The financial statements of subsidianes are
ncluded in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases
Losses applicable to the non-controlling nterests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controling interests even if doing so
causes the non-controling nterests to have a deficit balance

The financial statements of the subsidianes are prepared for the same reporting penod as the parent company, using consistant
accounting policies All intra-group balances, transactions, unreahsed gans and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
and dividends are elirmmated in full

In accordance with Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own Income Statement or
Statement of Comprehensive Income The loss for the year dealt with tn the accounts of the Company was £1,558,000 (2014
£:491,000)

Business Combinations

The acquisition of subsidianes Is accounted for using the purchase method The related costs of acquisition other than those
associated with the 1ssue of debt or equity secunties, are recogrised in the profit and loss as incurred The acquiree’s identifiable
assets and lkabilittes and contingent lkabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS3 (2008} “Business
combinations” are recognised at therr far value at the acquisihion date
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Notes to the Accounts continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Changes in accounting policies new standards, interpretations and amendments effective in 2015 adopted by the
Group and publshed standards not yet effective

No new standards, amendments to published standards or interpretations of existing standards effective in 2015 had a matenal
wnpact on the Group's 2015 financial statements The following new standards and interpretations to existing standards have
been published that are mandatory for the Group's future accounting, which the Group does not expect to have significant
impact on its accounting policies or disclosures

. IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (not yet effective)
. IFRS10 'Consolidated financial statements {(not yet effective}
. IFRS 11 ‘Jont arrangements’ (effective 2 November 2015) - amendment

. IFRS 12 'Disclosure of involvermnent with other entities’ (not yet effective)

L ]

IFRS 14 ' Regulatory Deferral Accounts' (not vet effective)

[ ]

IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with customers’ {not yet effective)

IFRS 16 'Leases' (not yet effective)

IAS 1 ‘Financial Statement Presentation’ (effective 8 December 2015)

v 1AS 12 ‘Income taxes’ (not vet effective)

IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and equipment (effective 2 December 2015)

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements’ (effective 18 December 2015}

IAS 28 ‘Investments in associates’ (not yet effective)
IAS 38 ‘Intangible assets' (effective 2 December 2015)
. Annual improvements to IFRS 2012-2014 Cycle (effective 15 December 2015)

In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 10, the Group reassessed the control conclusion for its investees at
1 January 2014 No modifications of previous conclusions about control regarding the Group’s investees were required

Measurement convention

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and habilities are stated at
therr farr value denvative financial instruments and financial instruments classified as fair value through the profit or loss or as
avallable-for-sale Non-cumrent assets are stated at the lower of previcus carmying amount and fair value less costs to sell

Revenue recognition
The Group generates revenue pnncipally through the provision of recrutment and technology services, and to a lesser extent,
through the resale of 3D equipment

The Group recognises revenue when certain cntena are met there 1s clear evidence that a contract exists, the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably, it 1s probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group, the stage of completion can
be measured reliably where services are delivered, and the significant nsks and rewards of ownership, including effective control,
are transferred to clients where equipment 1s sold Revenue 1s measured at the far value of the consideration receved or
recervable, net of discounts, volume rebates and value added tax

Revenue on contracts for the supply of professional services at pre-determined rates 1s recognised as and when the work 1s
performed, imespective of the duration of the contract Permanent placement staffing revenue is recogrised when candidates
commence employment Rebates may be applicable on a sliding scale where the candidate’s employment 1s terminated within 9
weeks Rebate provisions are created based on the expenence of clams

The Group presents nterim recrutment revenues, and the related direct costs of services, In accordance with 1AS 18's guidance
- Principal versus Agency Considerattons The Group acts as pnncipal in all of its interim recruiting transactons in that it cames
the nisks and rewards of ownership e g 1t has the obligation to pay the contractor, and it cames the nsks of non-payment due to
Insolvency or poor performance, and also the nisk of pricing reductions  Accordingly, n respect of intenm recrutment, the Group
reports gross revenues and gross direct costs

Revenue Is recognised on fixed price contracts while the contract 1s In progress, using the percentage of completion method,
having regard to the proportion of the total contract costs which have been incurred at the reporting date Prowvision is made for
all foreseeabie future losses

Revenue from systems integration and consulting services under time and matenal arrangements is recogrnised as the services
are rendered Revenue for equipment sales 1s recogrised at the pomnt of delivery, which 1s the point when the significant nsks and
rewards of ownership of the equipment have passed to the buyer

StockCode i




1 Accounting policies continued

Non-recurring items

ltems which are both matenat and non-recurnng are presented as non-recumng items within the relevant Income Statement
category The separate reporting of non-recurnng items helps provide a better indication of the Group's underiying business
performance Events which may give rise to the classification of tems as non-recurning, If of a significantly material value, include
gans or losses on the disposal of a business, restructuning of a business, transaction costs, ihgation and similar settlements,
asset imparrments, onerous contracts, and gains on bargain purchases

Finance lease payments

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding hability The finance
charge 1s allocated to each penod during the lease term so as to produce a constant perodic rate of interest on the remaning
balance of the liability

Financing income and expenses

financing expenses compnse interest payable, finance charges on shares classified as habiihes and finance leases recognised
n profit or loss using the effective interest method, unwinding of the discount on the retrement benefit scheme labilities, and net
foreign exchange osses that are recognised in the mcome statement {see foraign currency accounting policy) Financing income
comprises the expected return on the retirement benefit scheme assets, interest receivable on funds invested, dividend income,
and net foreign exchange gains

Interest Income and interest payable 1s recogrused in profit or 10ss as it accrues, using the effective interest method Dividend
income I1s recognised In the income statement on the date the entity’s nght to recave payments s established Foreign currency
gains and losses are reported on a net basis

[a]

Dwvidends

Final dvidends proposed by the Board of Directors and unpard at the year end are not recognised in the financial statements
until they have been approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting Intenim dividends, which do not require
shareholder approval, are recognised when paid

Taxation
Tax on the profit or loss for the year compnses current and deferred tax Tax 1s recognised in the income statement except to the
extent that 1t relates to itemms recogrised directly in equity, in which case it 1s recognised in equity or In other comprehensive income

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable or recevable on the taxable ncome or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following temporary differences are not provided for the initial
recognition of goodwill, the mnitial recognition of assets or habilities that affect nerther accounting nor taxable profit other than in a
business combination, and differences refating to nvestments in subsidianes to the extent that they will probably not reverse In
the foresesable future The amount of deferred tax provided i1s based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and habilihes, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which
the temporary difference can be utiised

Foreign currencies

Company

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and labilties
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date All differences are
taken to the Income Statement

Non-monetary assets and labiives that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction Non-monetary assets and llabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated
at far value are retransiated to the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the farr value was determined

Group

On consolidation, the results of overseas operations are translated into sterling at rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place All assets and liabilihes of overseas operations are translated at the rate ruling at the reporting date
Exchange differences arising on translating the opening net assets at opening rate and the results of overseas operations at
actual rate are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in Other Comprehensive Income relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are transferred to the
consohdated Income Statement as part of the profit or loss on disposal

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation 1s a component of the Group’s bustiness that represents a separate major Iine of business or
gecgraphical area of operations or its subsidiary acquired exclusvely with a view to resale, that has been disposed of, has heen
abandoned or that meets the cntena to be classified as held for sale
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Notes to the Accounts continued

1

Accounting policies continued

Discontinued operations are presented in the Income Statement (including 1n the comparative penod) as a single ine which
comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation and the post-tax gan or loss recognised on the re-
measurement to fair value less costs to sell or on disposal of the assets or disposal groups constituting discontinued operations

Segmental reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker The Chief Operating Decision Maker 1s the Group Board

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition of a business comhbination over the Group's share of the farr valus of
identifiable net assets of the business acquired

After initial recognition, goodwill 1s stated at cost less any accumulated imparment losses Goodwill 1s allocated to cash-
generating units and 15 not amortised but 1s tested annually for imparrment In respect of equity accounted investees, the
carrying amount of goodwill 1s included in the carrying amount of the investment in the nvestee

Gains and losses on disposal of a business include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the business sold in determining
the gain or loss on disposal, except for goodwill ansing on business combinations on or before 31 December 1997 which has
been deducted from Shareholders' equity and remans indefinitely in Shareholders' equity

Software
The carrying amount of software 1s its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any provision for imparment Software 15
amortsed on a straght ine basis over ts expected useful economic Iife of three to seven years

Intellectual Property

Intellectual property represents the expenditure incurred on developing new, innovative products/services that are expected to
generate future economic benefits The carrying amount of intellectual property 1s its cost less any accumulated amortisation
and any provision for impaiment intellectual property 1s amortised on a straight line basis over two years, with amortisation
commencing from the date that the products/services are avallable for sale

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment

Depreciation 1s provided on all property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to wnte off the cost less estimated residual
value of each asset on a straight line basis over its expected useful economic Iife, as follows

Leasehold improvements The lesser of the asset ife and the remaining length of the lease
Office equipment Between 3 and 5 years

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment 1s reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate
the camying value may not be recoverable

Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding deferred tax assets)

An imparment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the
latter being the higher of the far value less costs to sell associated with the CGU and its valug n use Valug in use calculations
are performed using cash flow projections for the CGU to which the goodwill relates, discounted at a pre-tax rate which reflects
the asset specific nsks and the time value of monay

Impairment losses are recogrised In profit or loss Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the
unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis

Googwnl 1s tested for impairment at each reporting date The carrying value of other Intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment is reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

For the purpose of Impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups
of assets (the “cash-generating unit”) The goodwill acquired In a business combination, for the purpose of Impairment testing, 1s
allocated to cash-generating units, or ("CGU") Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for the purposes of goodwaill
imparment testing, CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment 1s tested
reflects the lowest level at which goodwill Is monitored for internal reporting purposes Goodwill acquired In a business
combnation 1s allocated to groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination

An imparment loss in respect of goodwill i1s not reversed  In respect of other assets, imparment losses recogrised In prior
perods are assessed at each reporting date far any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists An impairment
loss 1s reversed If there has been a change In the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount An impairment loss Is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount dees not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, If no imparrment loss had been recognised




1 Accounting polictes continued

Financial assets
The Group's financial assets fall Into the categones discussed below, with the allocation depending to an extent on the purpose
for which the asset was acquired

Unless otherwise indicated, the canying amounts of the Group’s financial assets are a reasonable approxmation of their fair
values Subsequent to inhial recogmbion they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
imparment losses

Loans and recevables these assets are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
n an active market They anse principally through the provision of goods and services to customers (e g trade recevables)
They are inttially recognised at farr value plus transaction costs that are directly attnbutable to the acquisition or 1ssue, less
provision for impairment

The effect of discounting on these financial Instruments 1s not considered to be matenal

Impairment provisions are recognised when there 1s chjective evtdence {such as significant financial difficulties on the part of the
counterparty or default or significant delay in payment) that the Group will be unable to collect all of the amounts due under the
terms recervable, the amount of such a provision being the difference between the net carrying amount and the present value of
the future expected cash flows associated with the impaired receivable For trade receivables, such provisions are recorded in a
separate allowance account with the loss beng recognised within other operating expenses in the Income Statement

On confirmation that the trade recevable will not be collectable, the gross carrying value of the asset 1s wntten off against the
assoclated provision

Investments nvestments in subsidiary undertakings are recorded at cost The carrying values of investments are reviewed for
mparrment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position compnise cash at bank and in
hand, short term deposits and other short-term hquid investments In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise ¢ash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of bank overdrafts

Stocks and work in progress

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost comprises equipment for resale Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less all estmated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and
distribution

Costs recoverable on contracts which are expected to benefit performance and be recoverable over the Iife of the contracts are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as work in progress and charged to the Income Statement over the Iife of the
contract so as to match costs with revenues

Work In progress Is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable amount and represents that element of start-up costs which, at
the reporting date, has not heen charged to the Income Statement Cost includes matenals, direct labour and an attributable
portion of overheads based on normal levels of activity Net realisable amount 1s based on estimated seling price, less further
costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal Including provision for contingencies and anticipated future losses

Amounts recoverable on contracts and payments in advance

Amounts recoverable on contracts are stated at the net sales value of work done less amounts received as progress payments
on account Where progress payments exceed the sales value of work done, they are included in payables as payments in
advance

Fmancial labiltties
Alf of the Group’s financial labilities are classified as financial llabiliies camed at amortised cost The Group does not use
denvative financial Instruments or hedge account for any transactions E

Unless otherwise indicated, the carrying amounts of the Group's financial habilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair
values

Financial hkabilities include the following items

. Trade payables and other short-term monetary liabilities, which are initally recognised at far value and subsequently
camed at amortised cost using the effective interest method

. Finance leases which are inttially measured at far value and subsequently carned at amortised cost using the effective
interest method

. Bank borrowings, which are initally recogrused at far value net of any transaction costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of the
instrument  Such interest beanng habilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, which ensures that any interest expense over the penod to repayment 1s at a constant rate on the balance of the
habity carned in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position Interest expense in this context ncludes intial transaction
costs and premiums payable on redemption, as well as any interest or coupon payable while the hability 1s outstanding
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Notes to the Accounts continued

1  Accounting policies continued

Operating Leases
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to income on a straight ine basis over the term of the lease Lease incentives
receved are recognised In the income statement as an integral part of the total lease expense

Provisions

A provision I1s recognised in the balance shest when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, that can be reliably measured and it 1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects nsks specific
to the llabiity

From time to tme the Group faces the potential of legal action in respect of employment or other contracts In such situations,
where 1t 1s probable that a payment will be required to settle the action, provision 1s made for the Group’s best estimate of the
outcome

Where leasehold properties are surplus to requirements, provisions are macde for the best estimates of the unavoidable net futurg
costs

Provisions for dilapidation charges that will crystallise at the end of the period of occupancy are provided for in full on non-
serviced properties

Pensions

The Group operates a number of retrement benefit schemes With the exception of the ‘Panty Retirement Benefit Plany’, all of the
schemes are defined contnbution plans and the assets are held in separate, independently administered funds The Group's
contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the Income Statement in the penod to which the services are rendered
by the employees, and the Group has no further obligation to pay further amounts

The 'Panty Retirement Benefit Plan’ I1s a defined benefit pension fund with assets held separately from the Group This fund has
been closed to new members since 1995 and with effect from 1 January 2005 was also closed to future service accrual

A defined benefit plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contnbution plan The Group’s net obligation in
respect of defined benefit pension plans Is calculated by estmating the amcunt of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service In the current and prior penods, that benefit 1s discounted to determine its present value, and the farr value
of any plan assets at bid pnce, and any unrecognised past senvice costs are deducted The liability discount rate 1s the yield at
the balance sheet date on AA credit rated bonds denominated in the currency of, and having matunty dates approximating to,
the terms of the Group’s obligations The calculation 1s performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method
When the calculation results In a benefit 1o the Group, the recognised asset 1s imited to the present value of bengfits avalable in
the form of any future refunds from the plan, reductions n future contributions to the plan or on settlement of the plan and takes
Into account the adverse effect of any minmum funding requirements

Share capital
Following the adoption of 1AS 32, financial instruments 1ssued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they
meet the following two condittons

(8) they include no contractual obligations upon the company (or group as the case may be) to deliver cash or other financial
assets or to exchange financial assets or financial hlabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially
unfavourable to the company (or group), and

(b)  where the instrument will or may be settled In the company's own equity Instruments, it 13 either a non-denvative that nchudes
no obligation to deliver a vanable number of the company’s own equity instruments or 1s a denvative that will be settled by the
company’s exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity nstruments

To the extent that this definition 1s not met, the proceeds of 1Issue are classified as a financial hability Where the instrument so
classified takes the legal form of the company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statements for called up
share capital and share premium account exclude amounts in relation to those shares

For the purposes of the disclosures given in note 22, the Group considers its capital to comprise its cash and cash equivalents,
Its asset-based bank borrowings, and its equity attnbutable to equity halders, comprising issued capital, reserves and retaned
earnings, as disclosed in the statement of changes i equity

Financial guarantee contracts

Where Group companies enter into financial guarantee contracts and guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within the
Group, the company considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such In this respect, the
company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent hability until such time that it becomes probable that any Group
company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee




1 Accounting policies continued

Employee Share Ownership Pian (ESOP)

As the Company 1s deemed 1o have control of its ESOP trust, it i1s treated as an agent and consolidated for the purposes of the
consolidated financial statements The ESOP's assets [other than investments in the Company's shares), liabilities, ncome and
expenses are Included on a line-by-line basis In the consolidated financial statements The ESOP's investment in the Company’s
shares 1s deducted from shareholders’ equity in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Pesition as if they were treasury shares

Share-based payment transactions

Share-based payment arrangements in which the Group and Company receves goods or services as consideration for its own
equity Instruments are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions, regardless of how the equity
instruments are obtaned by the Group and Company

The grant date far value of share-based payment awards granted to employees Is recognused as an employee expense, with a
corresponding increase In equity, over the period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards The farr
value of the options granted 1s measured using an option valuation model, taking nto account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted The amount recognised as an expense 1s adjusted to reflect the actual number of awards for
which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately
recognised as an expense Is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market performance
conditions at the vesting date For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date far value of the
share-based payment 1s measured to reflect such condittons and there 1s no true-up for differences between expected and
actual outcomes

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified before they vest, the increase in the far value of the options, measured
immediately before and after the modification, 1s also charged to the Income Statement over the remaining vesting period

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements under IFRS requires the Group to make estimates and assumptions regarding the future
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal expenence and other factors including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Actual results may differ from these
estimates The estmates and assumptions which have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carmying amount
of assets and labilities within the next financial year are discussed below

Retirement benefit kabihity

The costs, assets and liabiities of the dsfined benefit scheme operated by the Group are determined using methods relving on
actuanal estimates and assumptions Details of the key assumptions are set cut In note 24 The Group takes advice from
ndependent actuanes relating to the appropnateness of the assumptions Changes in the assumptions used may have a
significant effect on the Income Statement and the Statement of Financial Position

Recoverabilty of deferred tax assets

The deferred tax assets are reviewed for recoverability and recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
avallable agamnst which deductible temporary differences can be utiised This IS determined based on management estimates
and assumptions as to the future profitability of the related business units The forecasts for the business used In this review
were the same as those used in the review of iImparment of goodwill (see note 14) The deferred tax asset would not require
writing down If the forecast future profitability of Panty Professionals Limited was 10% lower

Intangible assets — intellectual property

The Group capitalises costs incured in developing its range of technologies and services where management belteve that future
economic benefits will flow from the Group's intellectual property The development of new technologies 1s most prevalent within
Inition, the Group's innovative 3D offering In assessing the carrying value of the intellectual property, management estimate
future related revenues, by analysing 1ts order book and qualified sales pipeline Management are also required to make a
Judgement on the useful life of the Group’s Intellectual property, which they base on the useful ives of previously developed
technologies and services, and the current pace of change within the industry
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Notes to the Accounts continued

3

1 Accounting polictes continued
Significant accounting estimates and judgements continued

impairment of goodwil!

The Group 1s required to test whether goodwill has suffered any imparment The recoverable amounts of cash generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations The use of this method requires the estimation of future cash flows
expected to anse from the contnuing operation of the cash generating urit and the choice of a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value (see note 14} If forecast future profitability were 10% lower, a further imparrment loss of £116,000
would be recognised in respect of the Initton CGU only

Investments in subsidiaries

The Company reviews its iInvestment in subsidiaries to test whether any impairment has been suffered The recoverable amounts
are determined using discounted future cash flows If forecast future cash generation were 10% lower the nvestment would be
impaired by £116,000

intercompany receivables
The Company reviews receivables due trom subsichary undertakings to test whether they are recoverable Provision 1s made for
where there 1s uncertanty as to full recovery

2 Segmental information

Factors that management used to identify the Group's reporting segments

In accordance with IFRS B ‘Operating Segments’ the Group’s management structure, and the reporting of financial information to
the Chuef Operating Decision Maker (the Group Board), have been used as the basis to define reporting segments Whilst the
Group has three defined cash generating units (see note 14), the Group Board reviews financial information at aggregated,
divisional level, where offerings are similar in nature The components of each segment are descnbed below

The internal financial information prepared for the Group Board includes contrbution at a segmenttat level, and the Group Board
allocates resources on the basis of this information

Adjusted EBITDA as defined in note 4, profit before tax, and assets and liabilities are internally reported at a Group level

Descrption of the types of services from which each reportable segment derives its revenues
The Group has two segments

. Panty Professionals — this segment provides IT recruitment services across all UK markets It also provides graduate
selection, traning, placement and career development services Panty Professionals provides 92% (2014 92 %) of the
continuing Group's revenues

. Parity Consultancy Services — this segment delivers business intefigence solutions designed around client problems and
unique 3D creative technology Panty Consultancy Services provides 8% (2014 8 %) of the continuing Group’s revenues

Group costs include directors’ salanes and costs relating to Group activites and are not allocated to reporting segments for
internal reporting purposes

Measurement of operating segment contribution
The accounting policies of the operating segmenits are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting
polictes

The Group evaluates performance on the basis of contnbution from operations before tax not including non-recumng tems, such
as restructunng costs

Inter-segment sales are pnced on the same basis as sales to external customers, with a discount applied o encourage the use of
group resources at a rate acceptable to the tax authonties




2 Segmental information continuad

Panty \
Parity Consultancy Before non- Non-
Professionals Services recumnng recurnng Total
2045 2015 items items 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue from external customers 78,190 6,652 84,842 - 84,842 ‘
Altnibutable costs {75,914) {5,851) (81,765) - (81,765) ‘
Segmental contnbution 2,276 801 3,077 - 3,077 g" ‘
Group costs {1,497) - (1,497) g
Adjusted EBITDA 1,580 - 1,580 ‘
Depreciation and amortisation (719) - {719) g i;
Share based payment (152 - {(152) o
Impaiment losses - {1,994) {1,994) {
Non-recurnng items - {2,058) (2,058) ‘
Finance income . 506 - 506 ;
Finance costs (1,072) - {1,072) ‘
Profit/{loss} before tax (continuing activities) - - 143 (4,052) {3,909)
Panty J— :
Parity Consultancy Before non- Non- K
Professionals Services recurnng recurnng Total
2014 2014 items. tems 2014
£'000 £'000 £7000 £000 £'000
Revenue from external customers 84,466 7,798 92,264 - 92,264
Atinbutable costs {81,975) {7,115} (89,090} - (89,020
Segmental contribution 2,491 683 3,174 - 3,174 ‘
Group cosls (1,570) - {1,.570) ,: ‘,‘
Adjusted EBITDA 1,604 - 1,604 g
Deprecation and amortisation @77) - @477 F
Share based payment (242) - (242) & ‘ '
Non-recurring items - (814) (814) . t
Finance income 694 - 694 k
Finance costs (1,173) - (1,173)
Profit/{loss) before tax (continuing activities) - - 406 814) (408)

The continuing Group operates exclusvely In the UK All revenues are generated and all segment assets are located n the UK ‘

57% (2014 64 %) or £44 8m (2014 £54 1m) of the Panty Professionals revenue was generated in the Public Sector 21% .
(2014 19%) or £1 4m (2014 £1 5m) of the Parity Consultancy Services revenue was generated in the Public Sector T

The largest single customer in Panty Professicnals contributed revenue of £11 8m or 15% and was in the private sector (2014
£14 3m or 16% and in the pnvate sector) The largest single customer in Panty Consultancy Services contributed revenue of
£2 4m or 35% and was In the private sector (2014 £3 2m or 41% and in the private sector)
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Notes to the Accounts contnued

3 Operating costs

Consolidated
Continuing operations 2015 2014
£'000 £000
Employee benefit costs
- wages and salanes 8,228 8,252
- social secunty costs 762 939
- other pension costs 214 278
9,204 9,469
Depreciatiorn and amortisation
Amortisation of intangible assets — software 546 216
Depreciation of leased assets 27 29
Depreciation of tangible assets 146 232
Write down of tangible fixed assets 341 -
1,060 477
All other operating expenses
Contractor costs 72,073 78,377
Sub-contracted direct costs 977 1,065
Operating lease rentals - plant and machinery a7 54
- land and buldings 1,131 1,366
Sub-let ncome - land and buldings (150) (339}
Other occupancy costs 263 326
IT costs 296 367
Net exchange loss 12 6
Equity settled share based payment charge 152 242
Imparment Losses 1,994 -
Other operating costs 1,136 783
77,921 82,247
Total operating expenses 88,185 92,193
Disclosures relating to the remuneration of Directors are set out on page 20
Dunng the year the Group obtained the following services from the Group's auditor, KPMG LLP
Consolidated
2015 2014
£000 £ 000
Audit of the Parent Company and consolidated financial statements 11 "
Other services
Audit of the Company’s subsichanes 65 69
Intenm review 6 6
Tax compliance 27 23
Other 33 56
131 154
142 165

All other services have been performed in the United Kingdom

Other refers to services provided in relation to aborted acquisition activity, and adwvice relating to the Retirement Benefit Plan
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4 Reconciiation of operating(loss)/ profit to adjusted EBITDA

2015 2014

Nota €000 £'000

Operating {loss)/profit from continuing operations {3,343) 71
Non-recurmng items 5 4,052 814
Share-based payment charges 3 152 242
Depreciation and amortisation 3 719 477
Adjusted EBITDA 1,580 1,604

The directors use EBITDA befare non-recurmng ems and share-based payment charges ('Adjusted EBITDA') as a key
performance measure of the business

5 Non-recurring items

2015 2014
Note £000 £ 000

Continuing Operations s
Transaction costs 125 166
Impairment of goodwill 14 1,994 -
Gan on acquisition 9 - (55}

Restructunng

— Employee benefit costs 1,404 405
— Wnte down of tangible fixed assets M 129
— Other operating costs 126 -
Property provisions 62 169
4,052 814

The continuing operations non-recurnng charge for 2015 includes an impairment charge, transaction costs, restructunng costs

and a charge relating to surplus property The goodwill imparrment charge of £1,994,000 relates solely to the Group's mvestment
in Iniion Lumited (see note 14) Transaction costs refer to the professional services incurred 1n the Group's acguisiion programme

This inihative was discontinued dunng the year £737,200 of the restructunng costs relate to the closure of the Golden Square

business, ncluding a £341,000 write down of tangible fixed assets A further £659,200 relates to compensation payments made

n respect of redundancies following the Group's decision to discontinue its digital acquisiion initiative, and £454,600 relates to
compensation payments in relation to Board changes

The continuing operations non-recumng charge for 2014 included transachon costs, restructunng costs and a charge relating to
surplus property Transaction costs referred to professional services incumed in the Group’s acquisition programme £277,478 of

the restructunng costs related to compensation payments incurred in reorganising the Golden Square business following its
acquisition in May 2014 A further £127,827 related to compensation payments made in realigning the previously shared back

3
M
b
M

office functions, to the intended future needs of the Group's two segments The charge for surplus properties included a charge of °

£168,935 relating to excess property costs acquired with the Golden Square business, £76,000 relating to excess space at the

Wimbledon office, and releases of £108,000 relating mainly 10 a lower diapidatitons charge for the Wimbledon office than
previously provided for The other operating costs of £129,000 related to the loss on disposal of plant and equipment following
the restructunng of the Golden Square business

6 Average staff numbers

2015 2014
Number Number

Continuing operations
Professionals — United Kingdom? 92 93
Consultancy Services — United Kingdom, including cerporate office® 57 72
149 165

1 Includes 19 {2014 24} employeas prowding shared sennces across the Group
2 Includes 8 {2014 8) employeses of the Company

At 31 December 2015, the Group had 135 continuing employees (2014 159)
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Notes to the Accounts contnued
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10

)
Finance income and costs

2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
Finance ncome
Finance mcome in respect of post-retirement benefits 506 694
506 694
Finance cosls
Interest expense on financial labilities 300 312
Finance costs in respect of post-retirement benefits 772 861
1,072 1,173

The interest expense on financial iabilities represents interest paid on the Group's asset-based financing faciities A 1% increase
n the base rate would increase annual borrowing costs by approximatety £100,000

Discontinued operations
The results of discontinued operations include the results of other statutory entities sull owned by the Group which sold their
businesses in 2005 and 2006 These entities are not held for sale

The post-tax result of discontinued operations was determined as follows

2015 2014
£'000 £000
Expenses other than finance costs {4) (5}
Pre-tax loss {4 (5)
Taxation - -
Loss for the year {4) {5}

For 2015 and 2014 the pre-tax loss before non-recurnng items relates to legacy overseas subsidianes of the Group, and
comprises company secretanal and accounting fees

The Statement of Cash Flows includes a £4,000 cash outflow (2014 £5,000 cash outflow) from operating activities in respect of
discontinued operations

Acquisition of subsidiary

On 30 April 2014, Panty Consultancy Services Limited {then SuperCommunications Limited), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, acquired the trade and assets of Golden Square Post Productions Limited from its administrator The consideration pard
was £373,000 for net assets of £428,000 resulting in a non-recurring gain of £55,000 in 2014

On 29 May 2012, the Group acquired Initton Limited The Sale and Purchase agreement included additional cash consideration
subject to the ongoing performance on Inition up to 31 March 2014 Duning 2015, the final earn-out payment of £0 25m was paid
to the vendors

Share based payments
The Group operates several share based reward schemes for employees

. A United Kingdom tax authonty approved scheme for executive directors and senior staff,
. An unapproved scheme for executive directors and senior staff,

. A Co-nvestment Scheme for senior management,

. A Save As You Earn Scheme for all employees, and

. A Senior Executive Share Option Plan for Executive Directors

Under the approved and unapproved schemes and co-nvestment scheme, options vest if the share price averages a target price
for 20 consecutive days over a three year penod from the date of grant Options lapse If the individual leaves the Group, except
under certain circumstances such as leaving by reason of redundancy, when the options lapse 12 months after the leaving date

Save' As You Earn options lapse If not exercised within six months after the vesting date They are also subject to continued
employment within the Group
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10 Share based payments continued

Options under the Semior Executive Share Option Plan have no performance conditions other than continued employment within
the Group and must be exercised within five years of the date of grant

All employee options other than those 1ssued under the Senior Executive Share Option Plan have a maximum term of ten years
from the date of grant The total share-based remuneration recognised in the Income Statement was £152,000 (2014 £242,000)

4
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2015 2014
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise 2015 ExXercise 2014
pnice (p) Number pnee (p} Number
Qutstanding at beginning of the year 18 13,536,921 16 7,849,445
Granted dunng the year - - 20 6,372,705
Exercised dunng the vear 8 (97,500) 8 {102,500)
Lapsed dunng the year 16 (4,986,836) 22 (582,729)
Quistanding at the end of the year 19 8,452,585 18 13,536,921
The exercise pnce of oplions outstanding at the end of the year and therr weighted average contractual hfe fell wathin the following
ranges :
2015 2014
Exercise Weighted average Exercise Waighted avarage
pnce (p)  contractual life (years) Number pnece {p) contractual life (ysars) Number
7.5-10 4 1,250,000 75-10 2 4,199,133
17-28 8 7,202,683 17 -28 ] 9,337,788
8,452,583 13,636,921

Of the total number of options outstanding at the end of the year 1,782,500 (2014 4,499,133} had vested and were exercisabla
at the end of the year The weighted average exarcise pnce of those options was 14 pence (2014 11 pence)

97,500 {2014 102,500) options were exercised duning the year at an average exercise pnce of 8 pence (2014 8 pence)}
There were no new options granted dunng the year The weighted average fair value of option granted in 2014 was 9 pence

The following information 1s relevant in determining the fair value of options granted dunng the year under equity-settied share-
based remuneration schemes operated by the Group There are no cash-settled schemes

2015 2014
Stochastic Stochastic

Option pncing model
Wesghted average share price at grant date (p} - 20
Weghted average exercise price {p) - 20
Weighted average contractual fe {years) - 10
Weighted average expected life (years) - f 5
Expected volatiity - 54-74%
Werghted average nsk free rate - 137%
Expected dividend growth rate - 0%

The volatiity assumption 1s calculated as the histonc volatiity of the share pnce over a 3 and 5 year penod pror to grant date

Share options i1ssued to defined benefit pension scheme

In December 2010 the Group 1ssued 1,000,000 share options in Panty Group plc to the pension scheme at an exercise price of
9 pence per share These opticns may be exercised at the discretion of the Trustees, they vested on grant and have no expiry
date Any gain on exercise 1s to be used to reduce the scheme deficit These options were valued using the stochastic method
The share price on the grant date was 15 75 pence Whilst the options do not have an expiry date, for valuation purposes it 1s
assumed that the expected life of the options 1s 8 years The expectad volatiity 15 64 2% and the average nsk free rate assumed
was 3 4%
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Notes to the Accounts continued

11 Taxation
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Current tax (credits)/expense
Current tax on loss for the year (23) 9
Total current tax (credit)/expense (23) 9
Deferred tax expense/(credit)
Accelerated capital allowances 21) (19
Ongination and reversal of other temporary differences N -
Change in carporation tax rate 56 -
Adjustments in respect of pnor penods 1 35
Total tax expense 29 16
Tax expense on continuing operations 6 25

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 April 2015 Accordingly, the Group's

profits for this accounting penod are subject to tax at a rate of 20 25% The Finance No 2 Bill 2015 became substantively
enacted on 26 October 2015 and further reduced the UK corporation tax rate to 19% with effect from 1 Apnl 2017 and then to
18% from 1 Apnl 2018 The tax rate of 18% has been applied n calculating the UK deferred tax position at 31 December 2015

The 2015 tax expense 13 after a tax credit of £252,000 (2014 £159,000) in respect of non-recumng items

The reasons for the difference between the actual tax charge for the year and the standard rate of corporation tax in the United

Kingdom applied to losses for the year are as follows

2015 2014
£000 £ 000
Loss;for the year (3,919) (438}
Incoime tax expense 6 25
Loss before Income tax (3.913) 413)
Expected tax credit based on the standard rate of United
Kingdom corperation tax of 20 25% (2014 21 5%) {792) (89
Expenses/(ncome} not allowable for tax purposes 449 27
Adjustment for under provision in prior years {32) 35
Reduction in deferred tax asset due 10 change n enacted rate 56 ~
Tax losses not recognised 272 135
Deferred tax not provided 53 (83)
6 25
Tax on each component of other comprehensive income Is as follows
2015 2014
Before tax Tax Atter tax Before tax Tax After tax
£:000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations 42 - 42 67 - 67
Actuanal gain/{loss) on defined benefit
pension scheme 848 - 848 (649) - (649)
890 - 890 (582) - (582)
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12 Earnings per ordinary share
Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the basic earnings from continuing operations for the year by the wexghted
average number of fully paid ordinary shares in issue dunng the year

Diluted earnings per share i1s calculated on the same basis as the basic earnings per share with a further adjustment to the
weighted average number of fully paid ordinary shares to reflect the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares None of the
potental ordinary shares are dilutive, as the Group made a loss on continuing actvities dunng the year

Wesghted Weighted I
average number Earmngs average number Earnings \:??
Earnings of shares per share Earnings of shares per share } f
2015 2015 2015 . 2014 2014 2014 »f%. 4
£'000 000's Pence £ 000 000s Pence
Basic loss per share (3,919) 101,731 (3 85) (438} 101,655 {0 43) % :
Effect of dilutive options - - - - - ¢ - o ]
Diluted loss per share (3,919) 101,731 (3 85) (438) 101,655 {0 43) !
As at 31 December 2015 the number of ordinary shares in 1ssue was 101,824,020 (2014 101,726,520) i
Basic and diluted earrmings per share from discontinued operations was 0 00p (2014 basic and diluted {oss per share O 00p) . :
13 Intangible assets
Software Intaliectual Property Gocdwil Total : i
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 - .
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 €000 £ 000 £°000 £'000
Cost
At 1 January 1,219 727 672 - 7,753 7,753 9,544 8,480
Additions 66 492 283 572 - - 349 1,064 AN
Disposals - - (3) - - - (3) - :
Impairment - - - - (1,994) — {1,994) -
At 31 December 1,285 1,219 852 672 5,759 7,753 7,896 9,544 5
Accumulated amortisation ) g ’
At 1 January 233 21 4 - - - 237 21 ¢ F
Charge for the year 262 212 284 4 - - 546 216 v
Disposals - - - - - — - -
At 31 December 495 233 288 4 - - 783 237 :
Net book amount 790 086 564 568 5,759 7,753 7,113 9,307 .

During 2015, the Initon business invested in enhancing certain of iIts existing technologies in addition to developing new
technologies This resulted in addiional intellectual property of £157,000 Other additions te IP included content development for
the Talent Management business
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In 2014, the Inition business invested in developing a range of new products and in developing a new website This resulted In the
addition of £477,000 of intellectual property Other additions to IP included the development of GroupSeer, a venture between the
Group and The Royal Holloway College, amed at creating a marketing internet search engine

As at 31 December 2014 the Professionals division had wvirtually completed its project to implement a new financiat system, CRM
and website Dunng 2014 costs of £448,000 were capitalised in relation to the project

Tha Company does not hold any ntangible assets

Neither the Group nor the Company had any additional capital commitments for the purchase of intangible assets as at the
balance sheet date
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Notes to the Accounts contnued

14 Goodwill
The carrying amount of goodwill 1s allocated to the Group's cash generating units {CGUs) Dunng the year the Group announced
the giscontnuation of its SuperCommunications division, a CGU as at 31 December 2014 Therefore, as at the 31 December
2015, the Group allocated the carrying value of its goodwill to three separate CGU's, being Panty Professionals, Panty Solutions
and Inihon

Carrying amounts are as follows

Professionals Solutions Imtion Total
£000 £'000 £000 £'000

Carrying value
Balance at 1 January and 31 December 2014 2,642 1,952 3,159 7,753
Balance at 1 January 2015 2,642 1,952 3,159 7,753
Impairment losses - - (1,994) (1,994)
Balance at 31 December 2015 2,642 1,952 1,165 5,759

Goodwill was tested for impairment in accordance wath 1AS 36 at the year end An impairment charge of £1,994,000 was
recorded in respect of the Group’s investment in Iniion Limited  The imparment charge was daven by the Group's decision to
discontinue its digrtal “buy and bulld” acquisition inhative, and to subsequently focus management attention on its core
businesses

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are based on value in use calculations using the pre-tax cash flows based on budgets
approved by management for 2016 Years from 2017 onward are based on the budget for 2016 projected forward at expected
growth rates This 1s considered prudent based on current expectations of the 2016 long-term growth rate

Mayor assumptions are as follows

Profassionals Solutions Irition
% % %
2015
Discount rate 69 4.5 156
Forecast revenue growth 48 9.2 99
Operating margin 2016 a1 15.8 54
Operating margin 2017 onward 30-35 161-16.9 95-10.0
2014
Discount rate 80 43 65
Forecast revenue growth 22 147 74
Operating margn 2015 25 185 (4 3)
Operating margin 2016 onward 31-32 151-172 71-93

Discount rates are based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital adjusted for the specific nsks of each cash generating
unit

Forecast revenue growth s expressed as the compound growth rate over the next 4 years For all CGUSs the rates are based on
past expenence of growth m revenues and future expectations of economic conditions

Operating margins are based on past expenence adjusted for investments, and cost action taken in 2015 that wall reduce costs in
the future

A 10% change in the underlying assumptons used in the discounted cash flow forecasts for Intion would result in a further
impairment loss of up to £116,000 A 10% change in any of the underlying assumptions used in the discounted cash flow
forecasts for the other two CGU's would not lead to the carrying value of goodwill being in excess of their recoverable amount

An increase of 1% to the discount rate used in relation to the Inition CGU 1 e an increase from 15 6% to 16 6%, would result n a
further impairment of £45,000




15 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Office

mprovements equpment Total
Consohdated £'000 £'000 £ 000
At cost
Balance at 1 January 2014 836 3,313 4,249
Additions - 137 137
Acquisttion - 574 574
Disposals (820) (168) (1,088)
Balance at 31 December 2014 16 3,856 3,872
Balance at 1 January 2015 16 3,856 3,872
Additions - 92 g2
Disposals - (445) (445)
Balance at 31 December 2015 16 3,503 3,519
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2014 768 3,147 3,915
Depreciation charge for the year 72 189 261
Disposals (824) (82) {906}
Balance at 31 December 2014 16 3,254 3,270
Balance at 1 January 2015 16 3,254 3,270
Depreciation charge for the year - 173 173
Disposals = (104) {104)
Balance at 31 December 2015 16 3,323 3,339
Net book value
At 1 January 2014 168 166 334
At 31 December 2014 - 802 602
At 31 December 2015 - 180 180
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Notes to the Accounts continued

15 Property, plant and equipment continued

Leasehold Office

Improvements equipment Total
Company £ 000 £000 £000
At Cost
Balance at 1 January 2014 1 2 3
Additions - 1 1
Balance at 31 December 2014 1 3 4
Balance at 1 January 2015 1 3 4
Balance at 31 December 2015 1 3 4
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1 January 2014 1 - 1
Depreciation charge for the year - 1 1
Balance at 31 December 2014 1 1 2
Balance at 1 January 2015 1 1 2
Depreciation charge for the year - - -
Balance at 31 December 2015 1 1 2
Net book value
At 1 January 2014 - 2 2
At 31 December 2014 - 2 2
At 31 December 2015 - 2 2

Following the closure of the Golden Square business, its tangible fixed assets were written down resuliing in a loss on disposal of
£341,000

As at 31 December 2015, neither the Group nor the Company had any capital commitments contracted for but not provided, for
the purchase of tangible assets (2014 £nu) .

Leased plant and equipment
At 31 December 2015 the total net carrying value of the leased equipment was £nil (2014 £191,375)

In April 2014, the Group acquired Golden Square, including several digital technology assets that were held under finance lease
agresments At 31 December 2014 Inition had one 3D camera held under a finance lease agreement

16 Deferred tax

Consoldated
2015 2014
£'000 £000
At 1 January 536 552
Recogrused in other comprehensive income
Actuanal gain/{loss) on defined benefit pension scheme - -
Recogrused in the ncome statement
Change In enacted tax rate {56) -
Adiustments in relation to prior penods (1) (35)
Depreciation In excess of capital allowances 21 19
Other short term timing differences 7 -
At 31 December 507 536
The deferred tax asset of £507,000 (2014 £536,000) compnses
Consolidated
2015 2014
£000 £'000
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 447 476
Short term and other timing differences 60 B0
507 536
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16 Deferred tax contnued
A deferred tax asset on tax losses brought forward 1s not recognised unless it 1Is more likely than not that there will be taxable profits
in the foresegable future against which the deferred tax asset can be offset The Directors believe that the deferred tax asset
recognised 1S recoverable based on the future eaming potential of the Group

The forecasts for the business used In this review were the same as those used in the review of the impairment of goodwill (see
note 14) The forecasts for Panty Professionals comfortably support the unwinding of the deferred tax asset held by this division of ,
£479,000 (2014 £536,000) '

The deferred tax asset at 31 December 2015 has been calculated on the rate of 18% substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date ,
i
The movements in deferred tax assets during the penod are shown below
{Charged)/
{Charged)/ credited to
credited to other
imncome comprehensive
Asset statement theome
2015 2015 2015
£000 £'000 £000 i
Depreciation In excess of capital allowances 447 {16} -
Other short-term timing differences 60 {13} - i
507 (29) -
{Charged)/
{Charged) credited to
credited to other
income  comprehensive
Asset Statement ncome
2014 2014 2014
£'000 £ 000 £°000
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 476 19 -
Other short-term tming differences 60 (35) -
536 (16) -

The Group has unrecognised carried forward tax losses of £30,611,584 (2014 £28,802,000) The Company has unrecognised
camed forward tax losses of £24,229,376 (2014 £21,409,000) The Group has unrecognised capital losses camed forward of

£281,875,386 (2014 281,875,386} These losses may be carred forward indefinitely .

17 Work in progress

Consoldated ;
2015 2014 '
£'000 £ 000
+ Work in progress
Net costs less foreseeable losses 61 27

Stocks refers to 3D equipment purchased for resale, and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value

18 Trade and other receivables

Consolidaled Company ‘:‘,’
2015 2014 2015 2014 8
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 5
Amounts faling due within one year ‘:
Trade recewvables 9,365 10,636 - - 8
Accrued income 4,707 3,568 - - i m
Amounts recoverable on contracts 946 695 - - g
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 3,346 3,405 g
Other receivables 259 312 - - g-
Prepayments 342 313 4 2 g
15,619 15,524 3,350 3,407 g
Armounts falling due after one year
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 113,332 103,460
Total 15,619 15,524 116,682 106,867
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Notes to the Accounts continued

18 Trade and other receivables continued
The fair values of trade and other recevables are not considered to differ from the values set out above

£8,998,000 (2014 £10,176,000) of the Group's trade recewables, and £4,262,000 (2014 £3,948,000) of the total of the Group's
accrued income and amounts recoverable on contracts, are pledged as collateral for the asset-based borrowings These
borrowings fluctuate daily and at the year end totalled £9,973,000 (2014 £9,498,000)

The Group records impairment losses on its trade recevables separately from gross recevables Factors considered in making
provisions for recevables include the ability of the customer to settle the debt, the age of the debt and any other circumstance
particular to the transacton that may impact recoverability The moverments on the allowance account durng the year are
included within operaling costs In the consoldated income statement and are summansed below

Consolidated
2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
Opening balance - 33
Increases in provisions ) 7 -
Wnitten off against provisions - (33}
Recovered amounts reversed - -
Closing balance 7 -

The balance provided at 31 December 2015 was greater than 60 days old The allowance account represents full provision
against specific gross debts

All other debts at 31 December 2015 are considered to be recoverable

As at 31 December 2015 trade recevables of £1,532,000 (2014 £1,970,000) were past due, but not impared These relate to
customers where there 1s no ewidence of unwillingness or of an Inability to settle the debt The ageing of Group trade recevables

is as follows
2015 2014
Gross Impaired Total Gross Impaired Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £:000 £'000
Not past due 7,833 - 7,833 8,666 - 8,666
31-60 days, and past due 922 - 922 1,152 - 1,152
61-80 days 393 - 393 564 - 564
>90 days 224 (7} 217 254 - 254
Total 9,372 {7} 9,385 10,636 - 10,636

The Company had no provisions for trade recevables, as it has no trade receivables Other recevables in the Group and the
Company were not past due and not mpaired

The Company's recevables due from subsidiary undertakings were reviewed for imparment at the year end based on the
performance of 2015 and on subsequent years forecast projectons A discounted future cash flow method was employed for the
review As a result of this review, no provision was deemed necessary The assessment was performed on a value In use basis
using discount rates of between 4 5% and 15 6% (2014 between 6 5% and 8 0%) and the other parameters used in the goodwill
imparrment review, as outined in note 14




19 Loans & Borrowings

Consolidated
2015 2014
£'000 £000
Non-current
Finance lease llabilities 11 23
11 23
Current
Bank and other borrowings due within one year or on demand
Asset-based financing faciity 9,973 9,498
Current portion of finance lease labilties 43 61
10,016 9,559
Present Present
Finance lease labilities Future value of Future value of
minmum minimum minmum minmum
leage lease lease lease
payments Interest payments payments Interast payments
2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Lass than one year 47 4 43 61 g 52
Between one and two years 1 - 11 23 3 20
58 4 54 84 12 72
Further detalls of the Group's banking facities are given in note 22
20 Trade and other payables
Consoldated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£1000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
Amounts faling due within cne year
Payments in advance 259 439 - -
Trade payables 5,424 5,366 - -
Amounts dus to subsidiary undertakings - - 9,149 7,383
Other tax and social security payables 1,377 1,199 32 N 35
Other payables and accruals 1,514 1,310 380 a0
8,574 8,314 9,561 7,518
Amounts falling due after one year
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings - - 108,565 99,296
Total 8,574 8,314 118,126 106,814
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Notes to the Accounts contnued

21 Provisions

Leasehold

diapidations  Onerous leases Total
Consolidated £ 000 £000 £ 000
At 1 January 2015 13 69 82
Created in year 2 - 2
Utihsed In year - (70) (70)
Unwind of discount (1) 1 -
At 31 December 2015 14 - 14
Due within one year or less - - -
Due after more than one year 14 - 14
Total 14 - 14
Company
At 1 January 2015 - 69 69
Utiised in year - (70) (70)
Unwind of discount - 1 1

At 31 December 2015 - - -

Due within one year or less - - -
Due after more than one year - - -
Total - - -

Leasehold dilapidations

Leasehold dilapidations relate to the estimated cost of returring a leasehcld property to its onginal state at the end of the lease in
accordance with the lease terms Dilapidation charges that will crystalise at the end of the penod of occupancy are provided for in
full on alt non-serviced properties Based on current lease expiry dates 1t 1s estimated these prowvisions will be settled over a penod
of two to three years The main uncertainty relates to the estmation of the costs that will be incurred at the end of the lease

Onerous leases
This provision relates to office space no longer occupied by the Group, and represents the excess of rents payable over rents
receivable on sub-let office space

22 Financial instruments — nsk management
The Group 1s exposed to risks that anse from its use of financial instruments This note descnbes the Group's objectives, policies
and processes for managing those nsks and the methods used to measure them Further quantitative information in respect of
these nsks 1s presented throughout these financial statements

There have been no substantive changes in the Group's exposure o financial Instrument nsks and the methods used to measure
them from previous penods unless otherwise stated in this note

Principal financial instruments
The principal financial Instruments used by the Group, from which financial instrument risk anses, are trade recevables, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other payables and bank borrowings

A summary by category of the financial instruments held by the Group 1s provided below

Amortised Loans and
cost recavables Total
Consolidated £'000 £'000 £'000
As at 31 December 2015
Financial assets
Net cash and cash equivalents - 2,648 2,648
Trade and other short term receivables - 15,277 15,277
- 17,925 17,925
Financial habilities
Asset-based financing facility 9,973 - 9,973
Finance lease liabiities 54 - 54
Trade and other short term payables 8,316 - 8,315
18,342 - 18,342
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22 Financial instruments - nsk management continued

Amortised Loans and
cost recaivables Total
As at 31 December 2014 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Financial assets
Net cash and cash equivalents - 2,974 2,974
Trade and other short term recevables - 15,211 15,211
- 18,185 18,185
Financial habihities
Asset-based financing faciiity 9,498 - 9,498
Finance Loase labilities 84 - 84
Trade and other short term payables 7,875 - 7,875
17,457 - 17,457
A summary by category of the financial instruments held by the Company 1s provided below
Amortised Loans and
cost receivables Total
Company £'000 £'000 £'000
As at 31 December 2015
Financial assets
Non-current trade and other recewables - 113,332 113,332
Net cash and cash equivalents - 18 18
Trade and other short term recevables - 3,346 3,346
- 116,696 116,696
Financial habilities
Trade and other short term payables 9,561 - 9,561
Nen-current trade and other payables 108,565 - 108,565
118,126 - 118,126
As at 31 December 2014
Financial assets
Non-current trade and other recevables - 103,460 103,460
Net cash and cash equivalents - 102 102
Trade and other short tenn recevables - 3,405 3,405
- 106,967 106,967
Financial habilities
Trade and other short term payables 7,518 - 7,518
Non-current trade and other payables 99,296 - 99,296
106,814 - 106,814

Non-current amounts due to subsidiary undertakings have no specific repayment terms but are subject to notice penods of at

{east one year

Fair values of financial instruments

The farr values of all of the Group's, and of the Company’s, financial instruments are the same as ther carrying values

General objectives, policies and processes - risk management

The Group 1s exposed through its operations to the following financial instrument nsks credtt nsk, Iquidity nsk, interest rate nsk,

and foreign currency nsk

The policy for managing these nsks 1s set by the Board following recommendations from the Finance Director Certain nisks are
managed centrally, while others are managed locally following guidelnes communicated from the centre The overall objective of
the Board 1s to sel policies that seek to reduce nsk as far as possible without unduly affectng the Group's competitiveness and
flexibiity The policy for each of the above nsks 1s descnbed in more detaill below
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Notes to the Accounts continued

22 Financial instruments - nsk management continued

Credit nsk
Credit risk anses from the Group’s trade and other receivables 1t 1s the nisk that the counterparty fails to discharge therr obligation
in respect of the nstrument

The Group 1s manly exposed to credit nsk from credit sales Itis Group policy to assess the credit nsk of new customers before
entering contracts Such credit ratings are then factored into the credit assessment process to determing the appropnate credit
Imit for each customer The Group does not collect collateral to mitigate credit nisk

The Group operates exclusively in the UK Approximately 54% (2014 60 %) of the Group's turnover is denved from the public
sector The largest customer balance represents 22% {2014 22 %) of the trade recevable balance

Quantitative disclosures of the credit nsk exposure in relation to financial assets are set out befow Further disclosures regarding
trade and other receivables, which are neither past due nor impared, are provided in note 18

2015 Maximum 2014 Maxamum
Carrying value exposure Carrying value exposurg
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,648 2,648 2,974 2,974
Trade and other receivables 15,277 15,277 15,211 15,211
Total financial assets 17,925 17,925 18,185 18,185

Interest rate nsk
Interest rate risk i1s the nsk that the farr value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In
interest rates

It 15 Group policy that all external Group borowings are drawn down on the asset-based financing facilihies arranged with our
bankers which bear a flcating rate of interest based on the PNC base rate Borrowings against the asset-based financing facilities
are typically drawn or repaid on a dally basis in order to minmise borrowings and interest costs and transaction charges Although
the Board accepts that this policy nerither protects the Group entirely from the nsk of paying rates in excess of current market
rates, nor eliminates the cash flow nsk associated with interest payments, it considers that it achieves an appropnate balance of
these nsks

Throughout 2015 and 2014 the Group's variable rate borrowings were denominated in Sterling Interast costs on borrowings from
the asset-based financing facility with PNC was charged at 2 5% above base rate Amounts under this facility are repayable upon
demand

If interest rates on borrowings had been 1% higher/lower throughout the year with all other vanables hefd constant, the loss after
tax for the year would have been approximately £100,000 higher/lower and net assets £100,000 higher/lower The Directors
consider a 1% change In base rates 1s the maximurmn likely change over the next year, being the penod to the next point at which
these disclosures are expected to be made

The Company holds interest beanng loan agreements with some of its subsidiary undertalangs  Interest on all loans 1s charged at
2 0% above the prevalling Bank of England base rate, except for one loan with Panty International B V which 1s charged at 2 0%
above the pravailling European Central Bank base rate As at the 31 Decernber 2015, the loan balance due by the Company to
Parity International BV, translated into Sterling, was £22,993,000 (2014 £23,499,000 payable)

Foreign exchange nsk
Foreign currency risk 1s the nsk that the fair value or future cash fiows of a financial nstrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates

The Group no longer has any active overseas operations, but does retain certain overseas subsidianes that are not trading and
are In the process of beng closed down The Group's net assets ansing from overseas operations are exposed to currency nsk
resulting In gains or osses on retranslation into sterling The asset exposure 1s mainly N respect of intercompany balances

The Group does not hedge its net iInvestment in overseas operations as it does not consider that the potential financial impact of
such hedging techriques warrants the reduction in volatiity in consolidated net assets

The continuing business has few transactions in foreign currency The hedging of indvdual contracts is considered on a case by
case basis Owing to the small value and volume of such contracts no hedging transactions were entered in 2015 or 2014

Dunng 2014, the underlying denomination of a large intercompany balance between the Company and one of the Group's inactive
overseas subsidianes was revised As at 31 December 2013, the Company held a loan balance due to the relevant subsidiary of
£24,471,000 which was denominated in Stering The base currency of the Company is Sterling and the overseas subsidiary's
base currency 1s Euros In 2014, the denomination of the loan was revised to Euros, and thus subject to exchange rate
fluctuattons in the books of the Company As a result, In 2015 the Company recorded a translation gain of £865,000 (2014
£1,440,000) As at the 31 December 2015, the loan balance due by the Company, translated into Stering, was £22,893,000
(2014 £23,499,000)
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22 Financiat instruments — risk management continued
Foreign exchange nsk continued
The currency profile of the Group’s net financial assets was as follows

Functional currency of indmdual entity

Stering Euro US Dollar Total

Net foreign currency 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

financial assets £'000 £'000 £'000 000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Sterling - - 131 84 966 966 1,097 1,050

Euro {22,988) (23,485) - - - - (22,988) (23,485)
US Dollar 18 4 1,150 1,178 - - 1,168 1,182

Total net

exposure {22,970) (23,481) 1,281 1,262 966 966 {20,723) (21,253)

The profile of the Company’s net financial assets was as follows

Funchonal currency Stering

2018 2014
Net foreign currency financial assets £'000 E'000
Sterling - - i
Euro (22,988)  (23,485)
US Dollar 18 4
Total net exposure {22,970) (23,481}

Sensitivity analysis — Group and Company
If the exchange rate between Sterling and the Euro had been 10% higher/lower at the balance sheet date, with all other vaniables
held constant, the effect on equity for the year would have been approximately £2,299,300 higher/lower A 10% fluctuation in any

other currency exchange rate would not have a significant impact on profit and less, nor equity

Liquidity rnisk

Ligudity nsk anses from the Group's management of working capital and the finance charges on its borrowings under its asset-
based financing arrangements It the nsk that the Group will encounter difficulty n meeting its financial obligations as they fall

due

The liquidity of each Group entity 1s managed centrally, with daily transfers to operating entities to maintain a pre-determiged cash

balance Normal supplier terms range from 2 weeks to 30 days The level of the Group facility 1s approved pernodically by the
Board and negotiated with the Group’s current bankers At the reporting date, cash flow projections were considered by the
Board and the Group 1s forecast to have sufficient funds and avalable funding facilities to meet its obligations as they fall due

The following table sets out the contractual matuntes (representing undiscounted contractual cash flows) of financial labifities

Consoldated Upto Over

1 month 1 month Total
At 31 December 2015 £7000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables 8,574 - 8,574
Borrowings 9,984 43 10,027
Total 18,558 43 18,601
Consolidated Upto Over

1 month 1 month Total
At 31 December 2014 £ 000 £000 £'000
Trade and other payables 8,231 83 8,314
Borrowings 9,498 84 9,582
Total 17,729 167 17,896
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Notes to the Accounts contnued

22 Financial instruments - nsk management continued

23

Liquidity nisk continued
Company Between
Upto 1 and Over
1 month 12 months 1 year Total
At 31 December 2015 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables 9,561 - 108,565 118,126
Total 9,561 - 108,565 118,126
Company Between
Up to 1 and Over
1 menth 12 months 1 year Total
At 31 December 2014 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Trade and other payables 7,518 - 93,296 106,814
Total 7,518 - 99,296 106,814

More detall on trade and other payables is given in note 20

Capital disclosures

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents, equity attnbutable to equity holders, and asset-based
finance There s no long-term external debt, except for a small number of finance leases The leases represent a llability of
£54,000 and are repayable within two years The Company 1s funded through equity and intercompany loans

The Group uses an asset-based finance facility with PNC Business Credit, a member of The PNC Financial Services Group, Inc
The faciity, which enables the Group to borrow against both trade debt and acerued ncome and provides for borrowing of up to
£15 Om depending on the availability of appropriate assets as secunty

The Group's and Cocmpany's objectives when maintaining capntal are

. to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, and
. to provide an adequate return to sharehoiders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of nsk

2015 2014

£000 £ 000

Cash and cash equivalents 2,648 2974
Asset-based borrowings (9,973) ©,498)
Finance lease labiities (54) {84)
Net Debt (7,379) {6,608)

I

The Board regularly reviews the adequacy of resources avallable and considers the options available to increase them The
asset-based borrowing faciity contains certain externally imposed financral covenants which have been met throughout the
penod

The Company does not have distnbutable reserves avallable for dividend payments A capital reconstruction would be necessary
to create reserves avallable for distnbution

Reserves
The Board 1s not proposing a dividend for the year (2014 nil pence per share)

The following descnbes the nature and purpose of each reserve within owners’ equity

Share caprtal 1s the amount subscribed for ordinary share capital at nominal value

Durning 2015, 97,500 share options were exercised, increasing the Group’s share capital from £16,353,638 to £16,355,5688
Deferred share capital 1s the nommnal value assigned to the deferred share capital

Share premium 1s the amount subscnbed for share capital in excess of nominal value

Following the exercise of share options dunng 2015, the share premium increased from £33,189,314 to £33,195,689

Other Reserves of the Group of £44,160,000 relate pnncipally to a reserve created following a change of the Group’s ulimate
parent, and a corresponding Scheme of Arrangement in July 1998

Other Reserves of the Company of £22,720,000 relate to a reorganisation of the Group's capital structure in 2002, which resulted
in the Company Increasing s investment In subsidiary undertakings

Retained earnings represent the cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the Income Statement
Consolidated retaned eamings are stated after adustrnent for the ESCOP's iInvestment n the Company’s shares of £351,000 2014 £351,000)




24 Pension commitments
The Group operates a number of pension schemes With the exception of the Panty Group Retirement Benefit Plan, all of the ;
schemes are defined contribution plans and the assets are held in separately administered funds Centnbuttons to defined i
contnbution schemes were £214,000 (2014 £278,000) A I
i

Defined benefit plan .
In March 1995, the Group established the Panty Retirement Benefit Plan, renamed as the Panty Group Retirement Benefit Plan,
following a Scheme of Arrangement 1IN 1999, in order to facilitate the continuance of pension entitlements for staff transfernng

from other schemes following acquisitions in 1994 This 1s a funded defined benefit scheme and has been closed to new =
members since 1995 With effect from 1 January 2005 this scheme was also closed to future service accrual and future %
contributicns paid into money purchase arrangements «*’:
2015 2014 &
Pnncipal actuanal assumptions % % ¥ B
Rate of increase of pensions in payment 36%-3.9% 35%—-38% ,f i
Discount rate 3.8% 3s% ¢ i
Retall pnce nflation 3.1% 30%
Consumer price inflation 2.1% 2 0%

ST ¥

Note the rate of increase in pensicnable salanes 1s no longer applicable as the scheme is closed for future service

Nk

In accordance with the revised IAS19, the assumption for future Investment returns Is the same discount rate (3 5%) used In e
calculating the pension habilities The scheme's assets are invested in equities, gilts and bonds n approximately equal L
proportions -

e e
-

The underlying mortality assumption used 1s in accordance with the standard table known as S1 PA_H, S1PA or S1PA_L mortality,
dependent on the size of each member's pension, using the CMI_2015 projection based on year of birth with a long term rate of
improvement of 1 26% pa (2014 125%pa)

Contributions

in 2014 contrbutions were initially at a rate of £680,000 before being increased to £711,000 per annum on 1 August 2014 N

During March 2015 the Trustees agreed to a temporary suspension of contnbutions, and subsequently extended this agreement v jiss,

until July 2016 In February 2016, a lump sum contnbution of £100,000 was made by the Group In March 2016, agreement was ‘%‘;ﬁ 3 1[
% A

e,

reached with the trustees of the defined benefit pension scheme to reduce deficit reduction contributions, Iinking amounts
payable to company performance and affordability on a shding scale as part of the 2015 tnennial valuation review

In 2012 an issue was made to the Plan of 1,000,000 share options in Panty Group plc at an exercise price of 9 pence per share
to be exercised at the discretion of the Trustees and any gain to be used for the benefit of the Plan These cptions vested on
grant and have no expiry date

i
|
Reconcihation to consolidated statement of financial positien Lo
2015 2014 1oy
£'000 g0 Lo
Fair value of plan assets 19,703 20,356
Present value of funded obligations (21,194) (22,457) “i—“—
Al the end of the year (1,491) 2,101) . "
Reconcihation of plan assets E
2015 2014 [
£'000 £1000 z
At the beginning of the year 20,356 17,421 g
Expected return 693 777 #
Contnbution by Group 28 873 3
Benefits paid {786) (895) E
Expenses met by scheme (187) 71 2
Actuanal {loss)/gain {401) 2,251 %
At the end of the year 19,703 20,356 5
g
3
&
A 3




Notes to the Accounts contnued

24 Pension commitments continued
Composition of plan assets

2015 2014

£'000 £ 000
Equites 6,722 6,518
Gilts 6,436 6,906
Bonds 6,404 6,793
Options in Parity Group plc 96 96
Cash 45 43
Total 19,703 20,356
Recsonculnatlon of plan habilities

2015 2014

£'000 £ 000
At the beginning of the year 22,457 19,591
Interest cost 772 861
Benefits pad {786} (B95)
Actuanal {gain)/loss (1,249) 2,800
At the end of the year 21,194 22,457

The actuanal gain for the year of £1,249,000 (2014 loss of £2,900,000) in respect of plan labilities 1s mainly as a result of the
change in the discount rate assumption The assumption is based upon the yield on AA rated corporate bonds, and these
Increased during 2015 The loss In 2014 was as a result of a significant tall in the yield on AA rated corporate bonds

The cumulative amount of actuanal losses recognised since 1 January 2002 10 other comprehensive income 1s £5,970,000 (2014
£6,818,000) The Group 1s unable to disclose how much of the pension scheme deficit recognised on 1 January 2002 and taken
directly to equity 1s attnbutable to actuanal gans and losses since inception of the pension scheme because that information 1s

not avadlable
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
included in Finance Income
Expected return on plan assets 506 694
Included in Finance Costs
Unwinding of discount on plan labilities {interest cost) 772 861

The actual return on plan assets was £105,000 (2014 £3,028,000) This represents the sum of the expected return on assets
and the actuanal gan

Defined benefit obhigation trends

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

£000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000

Plan assets 19,703 20,356 17,421 16,260 15,206
Plan labilities {21,194) (22,457) (19,591) {19,667} (17,673}
Deficit (1,491) (2,101) (2,170} (3,407} (2,467)
Expenence adjustments on assets (401) 2,251 (34) 441 755
(2.0%) 12 4% {0 2%) 27% 52%

Expenence adustments on labilities (1,249) 2,800 {255) 2,018 674
(5 6%) 14 8% {1 3%) 11 4% 4 0%




24 Pension commitments continued
Sensitivity Analysis

Effect of change in assumptions

Increase/
Surplus/ {Decrease}
Liabilities Assets {Deficit) In deficit
£°000 £'000 £°000 £'000
No change 21,194 19,703 {1,491) -
0 25% nse In discount rate 20,474 19,703 {771) (720)
0 25% fall in discount rate 21,853 19,703 (2,250) 759
0 25% nse in inflation 21,226 19,703 (1,523) 32
0 25% fall in inflation 21,069 19,703 {1,366) (125)
25 Share capital
Authonsed share capital
Ordinary shares 2p each Deferred shares of (¢ 04p each Total
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
Number £'000 Number £'000 £000
Authonsed at 1 January 409,044,603 8,181 35,797,769,808 14,319 22,500
Authonsed at 31 December 409,044,603 8,181 35,797,769,808 14,319 22,500
Issued share capital
Ordinary shares 2p each Deferred shares of 0 04p each Total
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
Number £000 Number £000 £000
Issued and fully pad at 1 January 101,726,520 2,035 35,797,769,808 14,319 16,354
Share options exercised 97,500 2 - - 2
Issued and fully paid at 31 December 101,824,020 2,037 35,797,769,808 14,319 16,356

The deferred shares are not listed on the London Stock Exchange, have no voting nghts, no nghts to dividends and the r‘fght only
to a very hmited return on capital In the event of lquidation

2015 2014
Shares held by ESOFP/Treasury Shares Number Number
Ordinary shares held by the ESOP 43,143 43,143
The shares held by the ESOP are expected to be issued under share ophon contracts
26 Operating lease commitments
Operating leases - lessee
The total future mirimum rents payabie under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
buildings machinery buldings machinety
2015 2015 2014 2014
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Continuing operations
Amounts payable
Within cne year 508 27 882 26
Between two and five years 90 35 256 -
598 62 1,138 26

Operating leases - lessor

Certain properties may have been vacated by the Group pnor to the end of the lease term Where possible the Group always
endeavours to sublet such vacant space An onercus provision 1s recognised where the rents receivable over the lease term are
less than the obligation to the head lesser
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Notes to the Accounts contnued

26 Operating lease commitments continued
Operating leases - lessor continued

The total future minimum rents recevable under non-cancellable operating leases on sublet properties are as follows
Land and Land and
buildings buidings
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Continuing operations
Amounts receivable
Within one year - 146
Between two and five years - -
- 146

27 Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Group 1s exposed to the nsk of clams in respect of contracts where the customer or
supplier 1s dissatisfied with the performance, pncing and/or completion of the contracted service or product Such claims are
normally resolved by a combination of negotiation, further work by Panty or the supplier, and/or monetary settlement wathout
formal legal process being necessary Occasionally, such clams progress mnto legal action At the present time, Group

management believes the resolution of any known clams or legal proceedings will not have a matenat further
financial position of the Group

28 Key management remuneration

Key management compnises the Board of Directors The total remuneration receved by key management for 2015 was £837,000
(2014 £855,000) This compnses emoluments recerved, pension contributions, compensation for loss of office and share based

payment charges Key management remuneration 1s disclosed m detasd within the remuneration report

impact on the

2015 2014

£'000 £'000
Salary and fees 732 772
Other short term benefits 33 28
Post employments benefits 11 20
Compensation for loss of office 43 -
Share-based payments 18 35

837 855

29 Related party transactions
Consolidated

During the penod the Group transacted with one entity over which one of the Group's directors had control or significant influence,

as follows
it
Transaction valug Balance outstanding
2015 2014 2015 2014
Diractor Transaction £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
D Courtley [T nternm recrutment a1 399 - -

The Group provided IT contractors to Mozac Services Limuted, a company that 1s significantly influenced by Mr O Courtley
Amounts were biled at normal market rates for such services, and were due and payable under standard chent payment terms

Company

Details of the Company's holding in Group undertakings are given in note 30 The Company entered into transactions with other

Group undertakings as shown In the table below

Operating Finance Finance Operating Finance Finance

costs income expense costs income expense

2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014

£000 £000 £'000 £000 £ 000 £ 000

Amounts incurred from Group subsidianes (457) - {1,269) (621} - {1,036)
Amounts charged to Group subsicharies - 1,112 - - 917 -

At 31 December, the Company had the following amounts payable to / recoverable from Group undertakings




29 Related party transactions continued
Company continued

2015 2014

£'000 £'000
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakangs "
Falling due within one year (note 18) 3,346 3,405 ’
Faling due after cne year {note 18} 113,332 103,460 ~
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings
Falling due within one year (note 20) (9,149) (7,393
Falling due after one year {note 20) (108,565) {99,296)

30 Subsidhanes
The prncipal subsidianes of Panty Group plc, which have been mcluded in these consolidated financial statements, are Panty .
Professionals Limited, Panty Solutions Limited, and lnition Limited Panty Professionals Uimited and Panty Solutions Limited are
wholly owned by Panty Holdings Limited and ncorporated n the United Kingdom  Imition Limited 1s wholly owned by Panty
Gonsultancy Services Limited {formerly SuperCommunications Limited) and 1s incorporated in the United Kingdom Panty
Consultancy Services Limited 1s a direct subsidiary of Panty Holdings Limited, and Panty Holdings Limited 1s a direct subsidiary of
Panty Group plc

Parity Professionals Limited 1s a specialist IT recruitment and talent management services company Parity Sotutions Limited by

delvers technology solutions Inition Limited specialises in 3D solutions and equipment

GPSeer Limited 1s a small venture with The Royal Holloway University of London in which the Group has 60% of the voting nghts
lis sole purpose 15 the development of its INnnovative social media search algonthm

The Company’s investment in subsidianes was reviewed for imparrment at the year end based on the performance of 2015 and

review, no provision was deemed necessary, leaving a carrying value of £20,527,000 (2014 £20,527,000) The assessment was !
performed on a value in use basis using discount rates of between 4 5% and 15 6% (2014 between 6 5% and 8 0%} and the

other parameters used in the goodwall Impairment review, as outlined tn note 14

3

¢

The remaining Group subsidianes are either discontinued or dormant, and are listed below

Class Limited Panty Technology Laboratones Limited
Comtec Computer Training Ltmited Performance Agency Limited
Comtec International Limited Ponty Stick Limited {dissolved on 23 February 2016)

CSS Software Solutions Limited Prnme Selection Limited

Disqo Limited Readypatch Limited

ESP {Eurcpe} Limited Scene Systems Limited

Eurosoft Germany Limited Software 92 Limited

Eurosoft Solutions (France) Linited Systems Support Services

Eurosoft Solutions Limited Technology Media Limited

Golden Square Content Limited TMS Information Solutions Limited -
IC Software Limited Tobruk Limited

Information Mapping Limited Tndent Computer Services plc

Intron LLC (registered in the US)

Interactive Developments {Scotland) Limited

Interactive Developments Limited

Intercity Consultants Linuted

Integer79 Limited '
Made Content Limited :
Online Personnel Services Limited

Panty Computing Limited

Panty Eurosoft BV (registered in the Nethedands)

Panty Eurcsoft Limited

Panty Group Quest Trustee Limited

Panty International BV (registered in the Netherlands)

Panty international plc

Panty Limited

Parity Management Limited “

Party Permanent Investments bmited

Panty Selection Limited

Panty Sclutions {lreland) Lmited

1

on subsequent years forecast projections A discounted future cash flow method was employed for the review As aresult of this  * '
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